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Solvay, asking more from chemistry

As an international chemical group, Solvay assists industry in finding and implementing ever more responsible
and value-creating solutions. Its products serve many markets including energy and environment, automotive
and aerospace, electricity and electronics, with a common goal: to improve the performance of clients
and society's guality of life. The Group is firmly committed to sustainable development, and focused on
innovation and operating excellence. Solvay generates 90% of its net sales in activities where it is one of the
top three players worldwide. Thus, as the time comes to take stock of the past year, this report is structured
around the three major challenges that Solvay faces: asserting itself as a leader, committing to sustainable
chemistry, and constantly reinventing itself.

million net sales

employees sites and presence
in 56 countries

Following the agreement in principle signed on May 7, 2013 by Solvay and Ineos to combine their Chlorovinyls activities in a 50/50 joint venture and notification of the project
to the European Commission, Solvay’s Chlorovinyls activities are now presented as “Assets held for sale” in the balance sheet and in the income statement under
“Discontinued operations”. As such, they are not included in the presentation above. In addition, the compounds activities within Chlorovinyls (Plastic Integration), which

are not included in the proposed joint venture with Ineos, have been presented as “Assets held for sale” since December 31, 2013. Unless otherwise stated, this rule applies
to all data presented in this document.

The number of employees (full-time equivalent) stated in this document includes those working for “discontinued activities”.






In 1863, a young inven-

tor, Ernest Solvay, files his first

patent for the “industrial production

of sodium carbonate from ammonia”

and creates, with members of his family,

the company Solvay & Cie. The strategy of this —

global and partnership-based — undertaking is driven

by the conviction that scientific progress exists to serve

humanity. With this vision, Solvay positions itself as a forerun-

ner in the social, industrial and scientific fields. This same pioneer-

ing spirit has led Solvay to become involved in the Solar Impulse project
and to innovate in the field of responsible chemistry.

From 1872 onwards, Solvay & Cie undertakes fast-pace internationalization, bringing it closer
to its sources of supply and its industrial customers. In 1913, Solvay & Cie is the first global
industrial player to be present in Europe (including Russia) and the United States.

At that time 90% of all industrial sodium carbonate in the world is produced by using the Solvay
process. Presently, Solvay’s decentralized corporate culture remains an asset for the Group,
engaged today in rapid expansion in Asia, the United States and Eastern and Central Europe.

Solvay is the starting point for many social innovations. Guided by its humanistic ideals, the Group sets up
in 1878 a comprehensive in-house social security system, introduces the eight-hour day (1897) and later
provides the first paid holidays for workers (1913). Today, its social practices remain one of its strengths,
recognized by its stakeholders.



Anticipating
and reinven-
ting oneself




Solvay
In
figures

To permit meaningful comparison from one year to the next, the 2012 data have
been restated, in accordance with IFRS standards, as indicated in the footnote below.

- Net sales - Net sales by region
In € million in 2013
% 3E/0 3:'2/0 252/0
10,515 J
9,938
=== EUrope
North America
=== | atin America
2012 2013 === Asia Pacific & rest of the world
restated
- Adjusted Net Income - Capital expenditures
Solvay Share In € million
In € million
640
378
2012 2013 2012 2013
restated restated

The 2012 income statement data are restated to reflect the new organization that came into effect on January 1, 2013, the alignment
with the revised IAS 19 standard, and the planned joint venture with Ineos for chlorovinyls in Europe. The European Chlorovinyls business
activities are reflected as “Assets Held For Sale” on the Balance Sheet (in one single line) and as discontinued operations in the Income
Statement as required by IFRS. As from December 31, 2013, Benvic (the PVC compounding business) is reflected in the Balance Sheet as
“Assets Held for Sale”, but as continued operations in the Income Statement. Chemlogics is consolidated in the financial statements from
November 1, 2013. Furthermore, Solvay is presenting Adjusted Income Statement performance indicators that exclude non-cash Purchase
Price Allocation (PFA) accounting impacts related to the Rhodia acquisition. The reader is referred to pages 48 ff. of the present Annual
Report for further information on the convention followed in the management analysis.



- Adjusted REBITDA

In € million
1,896
1,663
2012 2013
restated

- Occupational
accidents at the
Group’s sites™®@
Accidents per million
hours worked

2.59
1.06
0.80 0.81
2012 PIE]

s | TAR: Lost Time Accident Rate

- Greenhouse gas
emissions™®
Mt CO, equivalent

14.9

PV

Number of work accidents with absence from work

more than 1 day employees and contractors.
MTAR: Medical Treatment Accident Rate

Number of work accidents leading to medical
treatment (other than first aid) employees

and contractors.

13.5

PAES

- Adjusted REBITDA

by Operating Segment in 2013*

8% 5% 3% 20%

ey

=== Advanced Formulations

=== Advanced Materials

=== Performance Chemicals
Functional Polymers

=== (Corporate & Business Services*
(Energy Services only)

* Excluding Corporate costs.

- Energy

Petajoules

222

168

2012 PAVE]

(1) See the Sustainable Development Report 2013: http.//www.solvay.com/en/media/publications/index.htm/
(2) These data include the Chlorovinyls activities, which it is planned to contribute to a joint venture with Ineos.

(3) These data don’t include the Chlorovinyls activities.

consumption®®



Solvay
in

headlines

Building
a hew

model of
sustainable
chemist

Sustainability and responsibility: never have these
issues been so crucial for mankind. All around the world,
we are seeking solutions. Solutions that limit the impact
of climate change, which allow us to produce more with
fewer resources, to meet the needs and aspirations

for the health and well-being of more than one billion
new consumers.




Our vision

Building a strong leader, a player in the reshaping
of the global chemical industry. Asserting ourselves
as a model of sustainable chemistry, capable

of attracting and developing talented people who
conceive, design and produce solutions to meet

the major challenges facing society today.

Asking more
from chemistry:

this is what enables
the Group to create value
for all its stakeholders.



CONSUMER GOODS & HEALTHCARE

Through its diverse offering, Solvay seeks to improve

the performance and ease of use of products

employed every day. Its solutions based on specialty

surfactants, its polymers and its fluorinated fluids
contribute to the effectiveness of detergents

and hygiene products. Its polymers, polyamide
and intelligent fibers are used by the textile industry
to create high-performance clothing. The range
of cellulose acetates serves the cigarette filters
market. For health professionals, the Group
develops a wide range of products including
specialty polymers for biocompatible medical
implants, synthesis intermediates and sodium
bicarbonate for effervescent tablets.

BUILDING & CONSTRUCTION

Solvay products make it possible to design
buildings that are at once more sustainable,
healthier to live in and consume less energy.
Its solutions are used in the production

of flat glass and double or triple glazing
window structures to stringent environmental
requirements. Fluorinated products permit

the production of high quality insulating foams.
Biodegradable solvents are used in paints

and “green” coatings. Finally, fluoropolymers
and engineering plastics increase the fire
resistance of electrical components and cabling.

25%

Distribution of 2013 net sales

AUTOMOTIVE & AERONAUTICS

Solvay offers the automotive market
polyamides, specialty polymers and composites
that improve performance and contribute
significantly to lighter vehicles. Fluorinated
electrolytes and lithium salts improve the
efficiency of batteries. Solvay’s solutions enable
automakers to meet constantly rising global
standards such as rare earth oxides for
catalysis and silicas for the tire labeling.

On the aeronautics market, the chemical,
mechanical and thermal resistance properties
of Solvay advanced solutions contribute

to the performance and safety of airplanes.

ELECTRICAL & ELECTRONICS

Solvay specialty polymers opens new horizons

in terms of design, safety and performance to its
industrial customers, who take part in the forward
march of tablets and smartphones, of OLED
technology, of rigid and flexible displays, computer
processors and memories and of semi-conductors
based on rare earths. For the electrical connectors
industry, Solvay develops specific products

and fluorinated polyamides with circuit breaker
and flame-retardant properties. It also offers
eco-responsible solutions including the recycling
of rare earths and bio-based polyamides.

17%



AGRO, FEED & FOOD

Solvay products and solutions respond to

the needs of players right along the food chain.

Upstream, its guar derivatives, its fluorinated
compounds and its solvents protect crops
and improve their productivity, while respecting
the environment. Downstream, its range

of vanillins contributes to healthier diets,

for example by contributing to reducing fats
and sugars in processed foods. Sodium
bicarbonate promotes a balanced diet and
preserves animal health. Finally, cellulose
acetate is used to produce environmentally
responsible food packaging.

INDUSTRIAL APPLICATIONS

Solvay provides industries with agents and
intermediaries to meet their challenges of

ENERGY & ENVIRONMENT

Solvay supports energy markets in their

quest for improved performance and lower
costs. Guar or surfactants provide solutions

for oil and gas extraction. PVDF fims improve
the performance and durability of solar panels,
while lithium salts increase battery performance.
Solvay processes and solutions are used to
produce energy from biomass. Solvay offers

its industrial customers its expertise in energy
optimization. Elsewhere, Solvay proposes
solutions for reducing air, water and soil pollution.

competitiveness and environmental performance.

12%
11%

10%

6%

19%
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MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIRMEN

NICOLAS BOEL

“The Group enters
2014 well positioned
to achieve its ambition.”

_After devoting 2012 to integrating the
two companies and introducing its new organization,
Solvay speeded up its transformation in 2013 in the spirit
of its long and rich history.

This transformation year saw the launch of structural pro-
jects that help refocus Solvay’s activities on growth markets.
A new joint venture with Ineos in Europe, the divestment
of the Latin American PVC activities, and the acquisition
of Chemlogics in the United States all are projects that
contribute to making Solvay an even more innovative
Group, turned towards growth markets that are also less
cyclical and create long-term value.

Simultaneously, Solvay has continued its strategy of selec-
tive investment to reinforce its activities portfolio and its
leading positions in high-growth regions, particularly in Asia.
These major changes have taken place in a difficult eco-
nomic environment, particularly in Europe and Latin America.
Yet it is in this context that the Group has reaffirmed its
ambitious growth strategy.

In 2013, Solvay celebrated its 150" anniversary, a great
source of pride and a unique opportunity to come together
around the values that cement the Group: ethics and a

JEAN-PIERRE CLAMADIEU

culture of responsibility, striving for excellence and a passion
for innovation that serves the planet. It is around these
values that Solvay’s strategic directions are articulated.
The Chemistry for the Future Solvay Prize awarded at the
end of the year is a fine example of the Group’s desire to
cultivate the pioneering spirit and passion for science of
its founder.

The Group enters 2014 well positioned to achieve its ambi-
tion: with stable shareholders that enable it to combine
long-term vision and adaptability, an ambitious strategy
and clear roadmap, and a culture of excellence and innova-
tion. Around the world, the energy and professionalism
of its teams are enabling Solvay to deploy its strategy with
speed and efficiency, and better serve its customers every
day. Mobilized around a common culture of responsibility
and performance, Solvay’s teams are the true power of the
Group and we thank them for their commitment.

With all this, Solvay can face the future with confidence and
pursue its ambition to be a model of sustainable chemistry.

N2 N
NICOLAS BOEL, JEAN-PIERRE CLAMADIEU,
CHAIRMAN OF CHAIRMAN OF THE EXECUTIVE
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS COMMITTEE AND CEO

Solvay - Annual Report 2013



INTERVIEW WITH
JEAN-PIERRE CLAMADIEU,

CHAIRMAN OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE AND CEO

1 H - 2013 full of maj
This transformation transformation projects
for the Group. How would you

allows us to set judge 1t

.- _Jean-Pierre Clamadieu: In 2013,

an am bltlou S Solvay accelerated its transformation with
the ambition of becoming a Group with faster,

less cyclical and more profitable growth. This

pe rfo rm a n ce is the reason for the changes we have made in

- - 5y pur portfglio. The acquisition of Chemlolglics
Obj ectlve for 201 6 in the United States strengthens our position
. in oil and gas formulations. Elsewhere we have
initiated the gradual exit from our chlorovinyls
activities in Europe and Latin America. Building
on the experience and know-how that our
teams have acquired over the years we have
generalized our thrust for excellence to all
our activities. This profound transformation will
continue in 2014 and beyond. It allows us
to set an ambitious performance objective
for 2016.

14 Solvay - Annual Report 2013



“Employee

autonomy and
responsibility are

the keys to our
performance culture.”

How do you view Solvay’s results in 2013?

_J.P. C.: In 2013 we faced a depressed macro-economic
environment, particularly in Europe. Despite this, and leaving aside
the scheduled phasing out of carbon credits and the effects of the
speculative bubble on guar, our operating performance remained
broadly stable, thanks in particular to our ability to defend our mar-
gins. This demonstrates the solidity of our business portfolio.
Among our growth engines, let me underscore the superb perfor-
mance of Specialty Polymers in a challenging environment, made
possible by its programs of excellence, the record results of Silica
which benefited from its leadership position in the tire market, and
the growth of Aroma Performance supported by the very dynamic
food flavorings market.

Operational excellence and innovation
are two major strategic levers. How are you
activating them to serve growth?

_J.-P. C.: At Solvay, operational excellence involves all Group
employees in a process of continuous improvement. In 2013 we
launched more than 120 excellence programs covering the organiza-
tion of production, supply chain management, innovation, marketing
and customer relationships. The results are promising. The energy
efficiency plans we are deploying at all our sites should reduce our
energy bill by more than 100 million by 2016. “Academies” are grad-
ually being set up to enhance the skills and performance of the
Group’s key professions. In 2013, priority was given here to develop-
ing commercial excellence.

We have set the course for our innovation: implementing our vision of
a chemistry that serves responsible development with answers to the
major challenges facing society. These are challenges that we of
course share with our customers, who are coming to us with increas-
ingly complex questions and expecting from us the solutions that
will enable them to make the difference on their own markets. Our
researchers’ mission is to make full use of our expertise in advanced
materials and formulations to devise, for example, solutions that
serve sustainable mobility, effective energy transition, or responsible
agriculture. We are keen to meet in this way the challenges posed by

population growth and resource scarcity, without
forgetting the fight against CO, emissions.

In a Group the size of Solvay,
how does one make change
happen fast? And how do you
see your own role?

_J.-P. C.: In a world of rapid change, you
have to adapt and react quickly to seize opportu-
nities and meet new challenges. This is the objec-
tive of our decentralized organization. Employee
autonomy and responsibility are the keys to our
performance culture. For us, our employees’ pro-
fessionalism and commitment are “assets” that we
develop by promoting the diversity of experiences.
My role, that of the Executive Committee and,
beyond that, of all members of the “Leadership
Council”, is to give a clear direction, to align ener-
gies, and help everyone understand how they can
contribute to this collective project. And we need
to be real agents of change, as close as possible
to the ground where our teams live and work.

What is your vision of Solvay
at the end of this transformation?
_J.-P. C.: We want to make Solvay a lead-
ing global chemistry group, recognized for its
commitment to its customers, its ongoing pursuit
of operational excellence and the quality of its
innovations for serving more sustainable develop-
ment. With its strong history and an ownership
structure that gives it the wherewithal to pursue its
long-term ambitions, the Solvay group is under-
taking its transformation with determination.
This is how we build a real model of sustainable
chemistry.

Solvay - Annual Report 2013



Executive Committee

- The Executive Committee (Comex) ensures objectives are achieved and optimizes resource allocation across the various
Global Business Units (GBUs). Acting as a collegial body, it is collectively responsible for the overall performance of
the Group and for protecting the Group’s interests. As of January 1, 2014, the Comex is composed of six members,
each of whom oversees a number of GBUs, Functions or Zones. The Chairman of the Executive Committee and the
Chief Financial Officer also assume this supervisory role in addition to their specific responsibilities.

N N
JEAN-PIERRE CLAMADIEU KARIM HAJJAR
CHAIRMAN OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE AND CEQ CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

N
JACQUES VAN RIJCKEVORSEL VINCENT DE CUYPER

N NS
ROGER KEARNS PASCAL JUERY
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Leadership Council’

- The Comex is supported by the Leadership Council. This body’s mission is to gather and share information needed
to feed exchanges of ideas and align the thinking processes of the Comex, GBU Presidents, Function General

Managers, Zone Presidents and the Business Services General Manager. The Leadership Council meets every four
months with a formal agenda.

L L L

N N N
GBU FUNCTION ZONE
MANAGEMENT ~ MANAGEMENT ~ MANAGEMENT
® ® ([ ]

ms
£A¢- j;x

T.BENNER A. BROUHNS G. BUCCO

E. BUTSTRAEN
MULTI BUSINESS UNIT
SILICA PUBLIC AFFAIRS/EUROPE COMMERCIAL NETWORK NOVECARE
[ J oo [ J [ J

&
N N
M. CHOLLET C. CLEMENTE G. COLLETTE F. CONSTANT
STRATEGY SODA ASH & DERIVATIVES INDUSTRIAL SOLVIN
[ ) [ ) o
v M. DEFOURNY v v
. . DESORMIERE A. DI DONFRANCESCO
G. CRAUSER CORPORATE SECRETARY & S
PEROXIDES CROUR COMMUNIEATION MARKETING & SALES SPECIALTY POLYMERS
[ J ® { ] [ ]
m ﬁ. § 1
N% N N
H.DU F. FERRAROLI 0. FERRARY J. HARTON
RARE EARTH SYSTEMS FIBRAS ACETOW ECO SERVICES
[ J [ J [ J [ )

* At April 1, 2014.
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ME

N
F. HINCKER V. KAMEL J. KHELIFF X. LANCKSWEIRT
ENGINEERING PLASTICS POLYAMIDE & INTERMEDIATES SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT BUSINESS SERVICES
[ ] [ J ([ ([

-

N v N N
J.-P. LABROUE M. LACEY M. LAUDENBACH 0.LIMA
GENERAL COUNSEL NORTH AMERICA ASIA PACIFICO LATIN AMERICA
® [ () ([ ]

Y s
N N N N}
J. MATIAS J.-M. MESLAND L. NELTNER D. RAGE
COATIS CHLOROVINYLS RESEARCH & INNOVATION AROMA PERFORMANCE
° ° ) )

-

P, ROSIER K Saksina J-F, SERRIER €. TANDEAU DE MARSAC
ENERGY SERVICES PROCUREMENT & SUPPLY CHAIN INTELLECTUAL ASSETS .HUMAN RESOURCES
EXCELLENCE
° ® ® °

v ¥ ¥ L L L
B. VAN DER WIELEN B. WILKES M. YBERT N N N
EMERGING BIOCHEMICALS SPECIAL CHEMICALS ASIA PACIFIC® GBU FUNCTION ZONE

MANAGEMENT ~ MANAGEMENT ~ MANAGEMENT
([ ( [ J ) ) o

(1) Zone President from July 1, 2014.
(2) Zone President until June 30, 2014.
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!

I i - Solvay committed itself in 2013 to a process of transformation, driven by an efficient
organization and a culture of assertive performance. A new model of sustainable chemistry

J is under way: inventive, global, focused on growth-generating activities, with higher returns
and stronger cash generation.

- Affirming
\ our leadership

5




Supgorting
the Group’s
transformation

For the success of its transformation process, Solvay is relying on its 29,400 employees in 56 countries.
The primary mission of Human Resources (HR) is to ensure everyone endorses the Group’s new
ambitions and contributes to the change process. By offering a motivating work environment, focusing
on people development, and deploying a culture of accountability and performance, Human Resources
participates actively in the Group’s success.

/ |
21 e

-

- - - '
— Making chemistry meaningful:
new employer communication
Increasing its appeal to young people is an important challenge for X
Solvay, which recruits 2,500 new employees each year, increasingly
in fast-growing regions. Launched in 2013, the new employer brand
capitalizes on the Group's values and its commitment to sustain- ‘
able development. Beyond the prospects of international careers, ‘r
Solvay offers talented persons from across the world the oppor- =
tunity to play an active role in building a more sustainable future o

through chemistry. This ambition is expressed throughout the new

recruit integration process. It was the subject of a communication
= e campaign in major recruiting countries and on social networks on
the theme “Join us. At Solvay we ask more from chemistry”.

20 Solvay - Annual Report 2013



_Since 2013, Solvay has been organized “BU-centrically” around
the autonomy and accountability of the management teams of the Global Business
Units (GBUSs). As a driver of change, Human Resources is adapting its vision and
mission to new challenges: providing day-by-day support to the operating entities,
promoting employee development, and increasing the attractiveness of Solvay to
today’s and tomorrow’s talent.

600 people worldwide are mobilized to achieve these objectives. While structured
to respond to local needs as expressed by GBUs, the HR team also provides the
Group with a global vision of its skills needs.

In 2013, this team worked to strengthen the cohesion of the Group by harmonizing
policies and processes, and helping deploy the new culture of performance and
accountability.

A priority: supporting geographic expansion

To assist the Group in its product and geographic expansion, new ways of working
are being introduced.

Identified as a powerful lever of cohesion and motivation, internal mobility is encour-
aged by a policy that invites talents to come out of their culture and skills “silos”.

In growth areas, emphasis is also being placed on recruiting and retaining local
staff, particularly in Asia. This multicultural dimension is proving a real asset as the
Group multiplies its acquisitions, facilitating the integration of new teams from
acquired companies, such as, in 2013, Chemlogics in the United States and Erca
Quimica Ltda in Brazil.

Right now the new culture is being actively promoted on a global basis. Every-
where, initiatives are being implemented to encourage ownership of it, including
management sensitization, internal training sessions, and integrating behavioral
models in annual performance appraisals.

An approach for the development of people

Continuous skills improvement and the endorsement by every employee of the
requirements of excellence are the keys to individual and collective performance.
This was the premise of the “Performance, Development and Career” program
that was deployed in 2013, with the goal of evaluating employee performance,
developing behavioral skills that link in to the new corporate culture, defining indi-
vidual development plans, and strengthening discussion of career development.
In 2013, managers were trained in a new annual assessment interview tool, the
PDCR?*, designed to promote employee development in a single Group-wide process.

Solvay - Annual Report 2013

This tool will be gradually rolled out to the sites.
The program includes training to improve skills in
management and executive leadership. In 2013,
these modules were adapted to the new challenges
and supplemented by professional “Academies”,
focusing on business skills.

Social dialogue to guarantee
responsible management

In line with its goal of responsible growth, the Group
is careful to move ahead within a framework that guar-
antees employees’ safety and well-being at work, and
respect for their fundamental social rights. This is the
subject of the social responsibility agreement signed in
2013 with IndustriALL Global Union, a global federa-
tion of chemical workers (p.36).

* Performance, Development and Career Review.

Commercial academy:
a tool for achieving excellence

A priority for GBUs in 2013, commercial excellence
is one of the programs that the Group provides
through its “Commercial Academy” to marketing
and sales employees. This unigue cross-cutting
course trains participants to marketing fundamen-
tals and to value-capturing mechanisms.



Organized and
mobilized around
a shared vision

Solvay has structured its businesses into five Operating Segments, each with its own specific
business model and each comprised of Global Business Units (GBUs) having similar growth
dynamics and competitiveness challenges. Each GBU is responsible for its own strategy and

has the operational levers with which to implement it. All focus on a common goal: creating value
for the Group while respecting their responsibility commitments.

Advanced Formulations Advanced Materials Performance Chemicals

Novecare

Coatis

Aroma Performance

— Net sales: € 3,125 million

— Net sales: € 2,551 million
REBITDA: € 724 million

- Net sales: € 2,432 million
REBITDA: € 646 million

REBITDA: € 369 million

Operating on mature markets with low

Another growth engine and a leader
cyclicality, this Segment’s success is based

A growth engine for the Group, the

innovative offering of this Segment is
aligned with major societal trends:
population growth, new consumption
patterns, etc.

Functional Polymers

Fibras

Engineering Plastics

on markets with high entry barriers,
the cutting-edge actvities of this Segment
generate high returns on investment.

Corporate &
Business Services

Energy Services

Business Services

on economies of scale, competitiveness
and quality of service.

3% % 3% % 3%

P

- Adjusted REBITDA
by Operating Segment*

- Net sales: € 1,763 million
REBITDA: € 93 million

- Net sales: € 67 million
REBITDA: € - 169 million

The key success factors of this Segment,
which primarily groups the Polyamide
activities, are continuous manufacturing
optimization and innovation.

This Segment brings together the functions

and services charged with achieving the

Group’s objectives of operational excellence,
energy efficiency and collaborative innovation.

Advanced Formulations

Advanced Materials

Performance Chemicals
=== Functional Polymers

Corporate & Business Services™
(Energy Services only)

* Excluding Corporate costs.

Following the agreement in principle signed on May 7, 2013 by Solvay and Ineos to combine their Chlorovinyls activities within a 50/50 joint venture and
notification of the project to the European Commission, Solvay’s Chlorovinyls activities are now presented as “Assets held for sale” in the balance sheet
and in the income statement under “discontinued operations”. As such, they are not included in the above presentation. Moreover, those compounds
activities in Chlorovinyls (Plastic Integration) which are not included in the proposed joint venture with Ineos have been presented as “Assets held for

sale” since December 31, 2013.

Solvay - Annual Report 2013



Novecare

- The world’s leading producer of specialty surfactants; major player in the polymers, guar and phosphorus

derivatives markets

- 2013 net sales: € 1,581 million - 28 industrial sites*

_Novecare develops leading edge tech-

nologies that affect the behavior of fluids to give them cleans-
ing, softening, moisturizing, hydrating, gelling, texturizing,
penetrating or dispersing properties. Its products are found
in shampoos, detergents, paints, lubricants, plant protec-
tion, mining and oil extraction.
Since 2010, the GBU has been engaged in an ambitious
growth strategy directed at supporting expanding consumer
markets, particularly in Asia. It also invests in niche markets
with a range of high-added-value specialties. Novecare
relies on a global network of 28 production sites and 10 R&l
centers and labs that develop innovative solutions to sus-
tainable development issues.

Increased positions in the US energy market

Identified as a reference partner by oil and gas extraction
operators, the GBU has expanded its specialties portfolio with
the acquisition of the US corporation Chemlogics. This brings
Novecare recognized know-how in custom formulations for
well stimulation and cementing, and significantly strengthens
its presence on the booming US energy market. The GBU is
today able to offer major oil players a full range of innovative
products and technologies for extracting oil and gas more com-
petitively and sustainably, with enhanced water management.

Surfactants: increased global capacity

Across the world, Novecare is boosting its manufacturing
capacity to meet global market needs. In November 2013,
the GBU doubled its surfactants production capacity in
Latin America by acquiring the specialty chemicals assets
of Brazil’s Erca Quimica Ltda group. This opens the door
wider to one of the world’s largest markets for health &
beauty and agrochemicals.

To better support its customers in Central and Eastern
Europe, the GBU has begun building a new specialty

A creative value proposition
for energy markets

Acquiring Chemlogics significantly expands Solvay’s range of
non-conventional oil and gas extraction technologies: Chemlog-
ics' expertise in friction reductors, non-emulsifiers and natural
extraction technologies complements the GBU's own expertise
in surfactants, natural polymers and green solvents. Chemlogics’
rapid innovation model and close customer relationships will
also leverage the Group’s expansion in North America.

Chemlogics in brief: 277 employees - Net sales: USD 500 million in 2013 -
Assets: 3 plants with an annual production capacity in excess of 300,000
tons, 8 formulation centers and 6 research centers.

surfactants plant at Genthin (Germany). This investment comes
on top of those made in existing European sites to increase
and optimize production.

The GBU also has begun building new alkoxylation ) facilities
in Texas (USA) and Singapore from which to optimize its > >

(1) Alkoxylation is a process for manufacturing monomers for producing
surfactants.

* Number of sites where the GBU operates. A single site may be shared by several GBUS.
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>3 supply lines to the highly dynamic construction and
manufacturing industry markets.

Guar: a global offering of bio-based solutions

Novecare is strengthening its leadership in the guar deriva-
tives market with breakthrough innovations that respond to
strong demand for sustainable solutions from both the agro-
chemicals and oil sectors. Novelties placed on the market in
2013 include STARGUAR®, a “ready-to-mix” crop protection
solution that allows operators to adjust dosages to local
conditions.

The GBU has also significantly increased its production capac-
ity. It has invested in its Vernon plant in Texas (USA), which
delivers mainly to the North American oil extraction market. In
China, the plant expansion at Zhangjiagang is in response to
strong demand from the Asian health & beauty market. With its
third production site at Melle (France), Solvay is the only player
in guar derivatives that is able to accompany customers on
three continents.

Coatis

- First Latin American producer of phenol and derivatives; leader in oxygenated solvents

- 2013 net sales: €486 million - 1 industrial site*

_Coatis utilizes several levers to expand
its business: substitute products that meet the current
challenges of sustainable development, a historical pres-
ence in Latin America, a portfolio of competitive products
and privileged access to bio-sourced raw materials (etha-
nol and glycerol).

Phenol and derivatives produced at the Paulinia site in
the southeast Brazil are used in the production of syn-
thetic resins employed in foundries, construction and
abrasives. Its production capacity enables the GBU to
supply the constant growth of the Latin American market
and increases its market share.

Coatis’ oxygenated solvents are used as a substitute for
harmful solvents, due to their low toxicity, their biodegra-
dability and their high solvent power.

In 20183, Coatis confirmed its development in bio-sourced
solvents by expanding the AUGEO® range of innovative
solvents produced from glycerin (a renewable feedstock
derived from biodiesel).

The GBU has a project to produce bio n-butanol from
bagasse, a renewable by-product from the crushing of
sugarcane.

* Number of sites where the GBU operates. A single site may be shared by several GBUs

Biotechnology projects in Latin America

After piloting and establishing expected results with the
Cobalt Technology company, Coatis has joined forces with
a Brazilian biotechnology company, GranBio to build the
first n-butanol plant at competitive cost using sugarcane
residues. Their medium-term ambition is to build several
bio-refineries alongside sugar plants in Brazil and in other
Latin American countries. They are also keen to capture
new markets with chemical companies.
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Aroma Performance

A

- World’s number one producer of diphenols and fluoroaliphatic derivatives; world’s number one producer of triflic
acid, and of lithium salt for agro-pharmaceutical, electronics, and batteries markets; world’s number one producer
of vanilla flavorings for the food industry; world’s number one producer of diphenol intermediaries for monomer

producers to the petrochemical industry

- 2013 net sales: € 365 million - 5 industrial sites*

_Aroma Performance’s growth strat-
egy is based on a strong global presence, placing it very
close to its customers, and on maximizing the potential
of its two fully integrated production chains, diphenols
and fluoroaliphatic derivatives.

The challenge: to meet global demand for vanillin
As the world’s leading vanillin producer, Aroma Perfor-
mance is the partner of choice for aromas and fragrances
producers. Its leadership rests on its ability to meet strict
food safety and environmental conservation regulations.
In 2013, the GBU expanded its portfolio of natural bio-
fermented vanillins. Complementing its flagship brands,
RHOVANIL® and RHODIAROME®, the new GOVANIL™
range opens promising horizons for food industry players
looking to differentiate their product offerings.

To meet growing demand from its markets, Aroma Per-
formance has doubled the capacity of its site at Melle
(France) and begun construction of a new vanillin pro-
duction unit at Zhenjiang (China), to come into operation
in late 2014. These investments increase Solvay’s overall
vanillin production capacity by 40%. In support of this
project, a center of expertise dedicated to the develop-
ment and application of vanilla flavors, the Vanil’expert
center, is being created in Asia, at the R&l facility in
Shanghai. Another R&l center will open in Singapore in

P

2014 to support the needs of the GBU’s customers in the region.
Aroma Performance stands out as the most global player in
its sector, with fully integrated production platforms in North
America, Europe and Asia.

Proximity to fluoroaliphatic derivatives users

The GBU also produces synthesis intermediates for the phar-
maceutical, agrochemical and electronics markets, along
with monomer stabilizers for petrochemicals and energy stor-
age solutions. Its fluoroaliphatic derivatives are increasingly
used in electronic applications, while its lithium salts (LITFSI)
have become an essential component of Li-ion batteries for
electric vehicles. As reference supplier to two subsidiaries of
the Bolloré Group, a world leader in energy storage, Aroma
Performance has doubled its capacity for these products on
its French site at Salindres to support the growth of these
markets. The GBU has also increased its presence in agro-
chemical industries, offering a new service for joint-develop-
ing molecules to measure.

Initial successes of the GOVANIL™ range

GOVANIL™ new generation vanilla flavors for the food
industry have an intensity 20% above that of standard flavors
and unprecedented long lasting taste. These properties

serve in particular to offset reduced fats or sugars levels

in recipes for cookies, chocolates and cakes. The range,
available now in three products (standard, intensive and
natural), is being marketed worldwide. In 2013 it took

the ICIS innovation award. ICIS is a leading global provider

of content and information on the chemistry and energy sectors.

* Number of sites where the GBU operates. A single site may be shared by several GBUs
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Specialty Polymers

- World’s number one producer of specialty and high-performance polymers

- 2013 net sales: € 1,288 million - 14 industrial sites*

_With over 1,500 products, Specialty Poly-
mers offers the widest range of specialty polymers in the
world. Its solutions derive from four technologies in which the
GBU boasts unparalleled expertise: aromatic polymers — cov-
ering the full spectrum of high-performance polymer applica-
tions — high-moisture barrier polymers, fluoropolymers and
high-performance cross-linkable compounds. Its value crea-
tion strategy is based on three levers: innovation, accelerated
growth in markets with high entry barriers and operating
excellence. Anticipating ever increasing worldwide demand
for “clean” technologies and energy, the GBU is focusing its
development on highly dynamic sectors like aerospace and
transportation, water treatment, smart devices, energy and
healthcare.

Specialty Polymers works with a network of 10 R&l centers
and labs on three continents. The GBU generates one-third

of its sales with products and applications that are under
five years old.

Rapid fire innovation

To maintain a constant flow of new products and technol-
ogies, the GBU partners with its customers to design
specific solutions. Thus, for the highly specialized subsea
pipeline market, the GBU has developed an ultra-flexible
PVDF: this extrudable fluoromaterial, with its specific
application technology, facilitates the restoration of under-
water pipelines.

In 2013, Specialty Polymers expanded its KALIX® range of
high-performance plastics (APPS) for smartphones with
three new ranges of bio-based polyamides: KALIX® 3000 —
the first amorphous polyphthalamide (APP) — KALIX® 2000,
a range of semi-crystalline polyamides with exceptional
external impact resistance, and KALIX® HPPA 5000 halo-
genated flame-retardant polyamides. The mechanical
properties of this latest innovation will enable it to replace
certain metals, including aluminum and magnesium. = -

SOLEF® PVDF, a booming market

SOLEF® PVDF (polyvinylidene fluoride) is a polymer offering
high-added-value in several key sectors, including transpor-
tation, alternative energy, electronics, water filtration, and oil
extraction. For several years now, its expansion in high growth
sectors has justified capacity increases across the world. In
2013, a new production line increased by 50% the production
capacity at Tavaux (France), enabling the GBU to better serve
a very active European market. The SOLEF® PVDF range is
used especially in hybrid and electric vehicle batteries, in oil
and gas extraction, in membranes for wastewater purification
equipment, and for energy storage in electronic devices.

* Number of sites where the GBU operates. A single site may be shared by several GBUSs.
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> > On the energy market, for which Specialty Polymers
develops energy efficiency solutions, its membranes contrib-
ute to the advance of zero-emission cars and the develop-
ment of alternative energy sources.

Strengthening our presence in expanding segments
Another priority of the GBU is to increase its presence in Asia,
where it has significant R&l and production capabilities. Partner-
ships are key vehicles in implementing this strategy: the GBU
has signed, with the Chinese company Shanghai 3F New Mate-
rials (SH3F), an agreement to create a joint venture to accelerate
the production of specialty polymers in China. The new unit,
based in Changshu in Jiangsu Province in China, will produce
TFE fluoromonomers and PTFE high-performance fluoropoly-
mers. This will enable Specialty Polymers to produce locally
for the automotive, photovoltaics, lithium ion battery, water
purification membrane and oil and gas applications markets.

To capitalize further on global demand for ever more light-
weight, durable and recyclable materials, the GBU has acquired
a shareholding in Aonix Advanced Materials, a developer of
advanced composite materials and industrial systems. With
this partner, Specialty Polymers will develop new thermoplastic
compounds for sale across the world.

S- I ]
- Inventor of highly dispersible silica and world leader in

- 2013 net sales: € 416 million - 8 industrial sites*

applications for energy-saving tires

_Silica provides innovative solutions for tire
manufacturers along with applications for many other market
segments: toothpaste, food, industrial products, rubber goods.
The GBU develops its activity in close partnership with its cus-
tomers, fed by innovation and a strong global presence.

The reference in the “green tire” market

Highly Dispersible Silica (HDS), marketed in the ZEOSIL® range,
has become the reference in the tire industry, especially for ener-
gy-saving tires. Used to improve tires’ rolling resistance, ZEOSIL®
HDS products reduce a vehicle’s fuel consumption by 5 to 7%.
The international development of the HDS technology is sup-
ported by the stringent demands of the many government stand-
ards governing the automotive and tire industries.

Continuous geographical growth

In 2013, the GBU increased the production capacity of its
Qingdao (China) site and began building a plant at Wtoctawek in
Poland. These investments mark another step in the GBU’s
organic growth, following on the new factory in Qingdao (China)

in 2010, and capacity increases in the United States (2011)
and France (2012). By 2015, they will enable Silica to double
its production capacity for highly dispersible silica as com-
pared with 2009.

A new basis
for expansion
in Europe

With a capacity of
85,000 tons, the future
Silica plant in Poland will
produce several ranges
of ZEOSIL®, including
ZEQSIL® PREMIUM, a
new generation of Highly
Dispersible Silica for
improving tire energy
efficiency and perfor-
mance. The GBU is well
positioned to support
the growth of its
customers in Central
and Eastern Europe
and in Russia.

* Number of sites where the GBU operates. A single site may be shared by several GBUS.
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Rare Earth Systems

A

- World’s number one supplier of specialty rare earth formulations, with a global market share of over 25%

- 2013 net sales: € 298 million - 5 industrial sites*

_Rare earths is the generic term for 17 nat-
ural non-ferrous elements present as ores in the earth’s crust.
These are particularly prized for their exceptional catalytic,
magnetic, luminescent or abrasive qualities.

Rare Earth Systems possesses unique technological exper-
tise in the separation and processing of rare earths. Its prod-
ucts contribute to many innovations in use in everyday life,
compact fluorescent light bulbs, LCD TV screens, semicon-
ductors and capacitors for laptops and tablets, medical
equipment, etc.

With its industrial know-how, global presence and R&l prox-
imity, Rare Earth Systems has affirmed itself as a strategic
partner for the automotive catalysis, electronics and phos-
phor powders recycling markets. The GBU is the leading
global supplier to the automotive industry of additives for par-
ticulate filters and mixed oxides for catalysts. Also the leading
world producer of cerium-based abrasives for semiconduc-
tors, the GBU strengthened its position in 2013 by launching
ZENUS™, a high precision colloidal cerium oxide abrasive.

Special Chemicals

Since 2012, Rare Earth Systems has been developing a
technology for recycling the luminescent powders con-
tained in fluorescent lamps. This process helps preserve
rare earth resources and ensure reliable supplies of ter-

bium to the European market.

A

- World leader in fluor, strontium and barium-based specialties

- 2013 net sales: € 549 million - 21 industrial sites*

_For meeting customers’ needs as closely
as possible, GBU Special Chemicals relies on its leadership
in leading edge technologies, its integrated materials sourc-
ing, its manufacturing facilities, and a global R&l network.

The GBU provides high-added-value solutions to niche mar-
kets: automotive, electronics, high-performance materials,
energy conservation and storage. Recognized as a bench-
mark in the industry, its flagship NOCOLOK® brazing flux is
used in manufacturing aluminum heat exchangers for the
automotive industry, for residential air conditioning systems
and industrial heat exchangers. The GBU also produces
blowing agents (SOLKANE®) for the thermal insulation market

* Number of sites where the GBU operates. A single site may be shared by several GBUSs.

and fluorinated intermediates for agrochemicals. For the
electronics market, it develops ultra-pure chemical pro-
cesses in wet environments for semiconductors along
with barium salts for passive components.

Innovation and geographic expansion are two strategic
levers of Special Chemicals. The GBU is particularly active
in Asia, where it is capturing the strong growth of regional
automotive and electronics markets. In 2013, the Chinese
joint venture Lansol, held in partnership with Sinochem
Lantian, laid the first stone of a new NOCOLOK® plant,
based at Quzhou (Zhejiang Province). The GBU has also
set up a new R&l center in Korea to strengthen its research
capacities in screens, electronics and energy storage.
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Soda Ash
& Derivatives

—>The world’s leading producer of soda ash
and sodium bicarbonate

—2013 net sales: € 1,351 million™
- 12 industrial sites®

_The production of soda ash and sodium

bicarbonate, Solvay’s historical activity, has grown
continuously worldwide for 150 years, directly linked
to population growth and increased purchasing
power. Soda ash is used mainly by the glass and
detergent industries. Sodium bicarbonate serves pri-
marily the food and feed markets and the health
sector, and is also used to neutralize acid flue gases.
For example, the SOLVAIR SOLUTIONS®range helps
manufacturers control their own air emissions.
In 2013, GBU Soda Ash & Derivatives announced the
construction of the largest sodium bicarbonate pro-
duction plant in Southeast Asia. Based in Thailand,
by 2015 it will be producing over 100,000 tons of
bicarbonate a year for Asia’s rapidly growing food
and health markets. Meanwhile, the GBU has launched
an operational excellence and manufacturing capacity
optimization program to increase, by 2015, its com-
petitiveness in North America and Europe. In particu-
lar the GBU has opted to expand its natural soda ash
business at Green River (Wyoming), United States.

N Peroxides

A

- Leading global supplier of hydrogen peroxide

-2013 net sales: € 405 million ™ - 16 industrial sites®

_Hydrogen peroxide (H,0,) is mainly used by the
paper industry to bleach pulp. Its properties are also of inter-
est to many markets like chemicals, food, textiles and the
environment. The world leader in this technology, Peroxides
develops innovative applications and processes for these
market segments. Its business is benefiting from the high
consumption of paper pulp and from worldwide demand for
high-added-value specialty derivatives. Innovation capacity
and agility are two of GBU Peroxides’ strengths. Thus, to
meet the expectations of its customers in more remote areas
(including South America), it rolled out in 2013 a new concept
of mini-plants to be located at customers’ manufacturing
plants. Growing industrial demand for propylene oxide* is
another growth driver: the GBU is leveraging here its unique
expertise in building mega plants producing H,0, as feedstock
for propylene oxide in the framework of HPPO (Hydrogen
Peroxide to Propylene Oxide) partnerships.

* An intermediate in the manufacture of polyurethane, a polymer widely
used in many consumer products and industrial applications.

HPPO: A mega plant to serve
the Sadara (Saudi Arabia) chemical
complex

In 2013, construction started on one of the world’s largest
plants to produce H,0, as feedstock for propylene oxide.
The unit is located at Jubail, Saudi Arabia, on the Sadara
chemical complex. Operated by Saudi Hydrogen Peroxide
Company, a joint venture recently formed by Sadara
Chemical Company and the Solvay group, it will produce
more than 300,000 tons of H,0, per year. This is the third
such mega plant operated by Solvay under partnerships,
after the world's largest plant at Map Ta Phut (Thailand),
and that of Antwerp in Belgium. In so doing Solvay
consolidates its global leadership in a technology adapted
to high-volume markets.

(1) 2013 restated figures in application of IFRS 11 are available on Solvay website, Investors section www.solvay.com
(2) Number of sites where the GBU operates. A single site may be shared by several GBUs.
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Acetow

- Leading global producer of cellulose acetate tow for cigarette filters;
number one in CIS and South America; number two in Western
Europe; reference supplier of cellulose acetate flakes

- 2013 net sales: € 658 million - 4 industrial sites*

_Acetow is a reference partner for cigarette filter producers
and a leading supplier of cellulose acetate flakes to the manufacturing
sector. Acetow’s cellulose acetate is produced from bio-sourced raw
material in the form of wood pulp from sustainable forests. Its cellulose
acetate tows cover all varieties of cigarette filters. Acetow offers inno-
vative products and services: such as RHODIA FILTER TOW® for Micro
Slim cigarettes, a new range of colored filters, RHODIA FILTER SORB™
for an improved filtration, and RHODIA DE-TOW™ for a faster degra-
dation of the used filter. The GBU’s growth strategy has two main pil-
lars: maintaining the dynamism of its traditional activities and winning
new markets by offering products that meet the challenges of sustain-
able development. Acetow has signed a license to manufacture and
market the ACCOYA® acetylation technology, a process which increases
the resistance of wood used outdoors. The GBU is also developing a
cellulose acetate bio-plastic under the OCALIO™ brand, which is easy
to mold and used in many common consumer products.

Speeding cigarette filter biodegradation

Innovations developed by Acetow include the RHODIA DE-TOW™ range with
enhanced degradation compared to standard cellulose acetate. This solution
exploits photo- and bio-degradation synergies to significantly accelerate the
degradation process of cigarette filters.

Emerging Biochemicals

A

A

Eco
Services

- Number 1 in sulfuric acid regeneration
in the United States

- 2013 net sales: € 288 million -
7 industrial sites*

_Eco Services is the leading
player in sulfuric acid regeneration in the
United States. The GBU works with major
refineries on the West Coast and in the
Midwest, the Gulf of Mexico and Canada.
It also provides virgin sulfuric acid to US
major industrial clients. Eco Services’ per-
formance is based on the reliability and
quality of its service, its operating effi-
ciency and its logistics expertise. In line
with the Group’s sustainable development
commitments, Eco Services was in 2007
the first sulfuric acid producer to sign an
agreement with the United States Envi-
ronmental Protection Agency to reduce its
environmental footprint. In early 2014 it
attained its goal, reducing its total sulfur
dioxide emissions by more than 90%.

A

- Inventor and world leader in EPICEROL® technology; a leading producer of chlorovinyl in Southeast Asia

- 2013 net sales: € 424 million - 1 industrial site*

_The GBU Emerging Biochemicals groups the various
activities to develop and produce chlorovinyl and epichloro-
hydrin based on EPICEROL® . Through the Thai subsidiary
Vinythai Public Company Ltd, the GBU produces PVC resins
sold under the SIAMVIC® brand, along with caustic soda in
the form of a solid water-soluble base. It is the world’s number
one producer of bio-sourced epichlorohydrin, or EPICEROL®,
an innovative technology based on the conversion of glyc-
erin. Competitive and with a significantly reduced environ-
mental footprint, it offers a high-performance alternative to
the conventional method. In Thailand, the GBU has obtained

Authority of Thailand has also presented it with a Golden
Trophy for its environmental and social initiatives.

(1) Raw material used in the production of epoxy resins.

Strengthened partnership
with AkzoNobel
In 2013, Solvay concluded a three-year renewable contract

to supply AkzoNabel, the world's number one paints
and coatings producer, with EPICEROL® bio-sourced

epichlorohydrin. AkzoNabel's strategy is to steadily

the “level-4 green industry certificate”, high CSR distinction
awarded by the Thai Ministry of Industry. The Industrial Estate

* Number of sites where the GBU operates. A single site may be shared by several GBUSs.
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Polyamide

- 2013 net sales: € 1,557 million - 16 industrial sites*

A

- A leading world producer of polyamide 6-6
and adipic acid

- Global specialist in polyamide 6.6-based solutions

_Polyamide & Intermediates (P&l) supplies a wide
variety of markets including engineering plastics, textiles,
industrial fibers and yarns, varnishes and adhesives, and
leather processing. In 2013, the GBU started a program of
business excellence and improving the flexibility of its
industrial tools. P&l has also invested in optimizing the
energy efficiency of its adipic acid production chain at Cha-
lampé (France), which will significantly reduce energy costs.
To achieve its objective of profitable growth, the GBU is
looking to its mastery of its production process, to its add-
ed-value specialties, and to the launch of new polymers
and molecules.

—Latin America’s number one manufacturer of polyamide
(nylon)

_Fibras produces polyamide 6.6-based yarns and
fibers used in many textile and industrial applications. With a
strong focus on innovation, Fibras has developed specific
expertise in designing yarns for smart textiles. Marketed under
the AMNI® and EMANA® brands, these innovations are recog-
nized by Brazil’s health authorities. The EMANA® fiber includes
bio-crystals that interact with body heat. EMANA® is particu-
larly appreciated by textiles manufacturers for its beneficial
cosmetics effects to skin and to improve athletic performance.
In 2013, the integration of EMANA® with denim fabric created
the first “technological jeans” in the world, opening vast new
global prospects for the brand.

_Engineering Plastics designs, manufactures
and sells, under the TECHNYL® brand, a full range of
high-performance materials. Their mechanical, thermal
and fire resistance qualities meet the expectations of
demanding markets, including automotive and transpor-
tation, construction, energy, consumer goods and indus-
trial equipment. In 2013, Engineering Plastics celebrated
the 60" anniversary of its TECHNYL® brand by segment-
ing its solutions into four differentiated offerings: metal
replacement, fire protection, thermal management and
fluid barrier. Involved at an early stage in its customers’
projects, the GBU offers its unique expertise in advanced
simulation and prototyping, dedicated application testing
and certified laboratories. This approach has given birth
to SINTERLINE TECHNYL POWDERS™, a range of pow-
ders for laser prototyping, enabling complex 3D parts to
be produced in record time.

TECHNYL°ONE: pushing the boundaries

In 2013, Engineering Plastics launched TECHNYL®ONE, a new
patented technology designed to help electrical equipment
manufacturers meet the challenges of miniaturization.
Launched at the Kunststoff fair in Diisseldorf (Germany),

it offers higher electrical performance than standard high-
performance plastics while eliminating corrosion problems.

Following the agreement in principle signed on May 7, 2013 by Solvay and Ineos to combine their Chlorovinyls activities in a 50/50 joint venture and notification of the
project to the European Commission, Solvay’s Chlorovinyls activities are now presented as “Assets held for sale” in the balance sheet and in the income statement under
“Discontinued operations”. As such, they are not included in the presentation above. In addition, the compounds activities within Chlorovinyls (Plastic Integration), which
are not included in the proposed joint venture with Ineos, have been presented as “Assets held for sale” since December 31, 2013.

* Number of sites where the GBU operates. A single site may be shared by several GBUS.
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Energy Services

- Specialist in energy management

- 2013 net sales: € 67 million - 1 industrial site*

A

_The vocation of GBU Energy Services is to improve
the energy consumption and contribute to the reduction of the
CO, emissions of Solvay — with a target of impacting REBITDA
by over € 100 million in 2016. Solvay itself is Energy Services’
number one client. The GBU’s mission here is to optimize energy
purchases (€ 1 billion in 2013), to deploy the Solwatt energy
efficiency program on Group sites, and operate an installed
global energy self-production capacity of 1,000 MW.

Expertise made available to industry

Energy Services offers to third-party industrial entreprises exper-
tise developed for Solvay.

Its Energy & CO, Management Services (ECMS) proposes to
reduce the latter’s overall energy costs by 10 to 20%, through
competitive access to energy and to CO, management and
energy efficiency services. The GBU also offers manufacturers
an opportunity to optimize the profitability of their energy produc-
tion facilities at European level.

Anticipating future trends in the energy market, Energy Services
is developing Cleantech activities based on research into innova-
tive alternative energy sources.

In 2013, Energy Services created with CDC Climat (100% sub-
sidiary of the French Caisse des Dépdts) and with Marubeni a

joint venture to finance energy efficiency projects in the Euro
zone. The first investment by this joint venture was made at

Solvay’s rare earth’s plant at La Rochelle (France).

Solwatt for a culture
of energy efficiency

The Solwatt program was initiated in 2011 to assist
Solvay's industrial sites in gradually reducing their

energy consumption. The aim is to reduce these costs
by at least 10% in three years and create a sustainable
culture of energy efficiency in these entities.

The continuous improvement plans, covering process-
es, production, and maintenance, being implemented

under the program involve all employees at each site.

Today the program is deployed in 33 Solvay units -
representing 59% of the Group’s energy bill.
Outcomes are in line with objectives. In 2013,
Solvay began marketing Solwatt to third parties.

Business Services

_Business Services groups, in a single organiza-
tion by process, all of the Group’s IT services and its main
administrative departments (accounting; credit, customer
service, customs; payroll and personnel administration;
supplies). Business Services serves daily thousands of Solvay

* Number of sites where the GBU operates. A single site may be shared by several GBUSs.

A

customers and employees around the world. In 2013,
Business Services initiated its transformation into a global
shared services organization, with the goal of making
the Group a benchmark for quality service, process effi-

ciency, cost optimization and value creation.
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olvay is convinced that chemistry can respond to the challenges of!alpable development
that the success of the Group rests on its ability to respond to these, both with the solution
it offers and the way it operates. This conviction guides its strategic directions and its allocatio ‘

of resources.
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Sustainable development:
an opportunity for
chemistry

The “Solvay Way” social and environmental responsibility initiative plays a central role in the Group’s
vision of building a model of sustainable chemistry. A lever for growth, Solvay Way is intended to
develop, through responsible production practices, a sustainable chemistry that is respectful of the
planet and contributes to the emergence of safer and healthier lifestyles and consumption.

Jacques Kheliff, Solvay Group General Manager Sustainable Development

Solvay Way converts our
ambition for more sustainable
development into concrete
action. We have conceived

to ask themselves what impact their activities,
their practices, their processes, and their products
have on their stakeholders. All our employees, at
all levels, have specific roles to play in Solvay Way.

this demanding approach
and the associated reference guide in such a way that
each player in the Group, from manager to operator,

can commit personally to the Group’s sustainable
development engagement. The strength of this approach
lies in its pragmatism. Integrating existing programs

and indicators, it does not seek to revolutionize, but

to question, inviting each entity, and each employee,

*CSR: Corporate Social Responsibility.

This is why 10% of the variable remuneration of

our 7,500 managers is linked to CSR*, sending a

strong sign of Solvay’s commitment to sustainable
development. Already, 100% of the Group’s entities
have evaluated their practices and determined their lines
of progress for 2014: this rapid adoption reflects strong
internal mobilization and constitutes a guarantee of
success for the realization of our 2020 objectives.
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_Sustainable development is a major concern for chemists.
Their fundamental role in the transformation of natural resources into industrial
resources requires them to take responsibility for their products’ socio-eco-
nomic effects and environmental footprint. Solvay was a forerunner in taking
these issues into account in its processes and practices.
Today, the Group has made sustainable development a driver of its strategy and
the majority of its activities are already directed towards markets that reflect the
requirements and opportunities linked to challenges facing the world today.
Deployed in 2013, the Solvay Way responsibility initiative aims to accelerate the
Group’s progress towards sustainable chemistry. Its primary objectives remain:

attaining excellence in safety, health and profes-
sional hygiene for people on its sites; achieving a
growing share of turnover with products responding
to the challenges of sustainable development, con-
tinuously improving the performances of its technol-
ogies and processes, reducing its environmental
footprint, and developing a rich and balanced social
dialogue. Anchored in the everyday reality of the
Group’s professions, Solvay Way is implemented by
benchmarking against Group best practices.

Commitments at the highest level
Solvay has chosen to align its initiative with the
most demanding global references. As a signatory
to the United Nations Global Compact, the Group
publishes a detailed report on its activities annually.
The Group also adheres to the obligations of the
“Responsible Care” global charter, a continuous
improvement program initiated by the chemical
industry itself, and to the OECD’s Guiding Principles
for Multinational Enterprises.

For further details, readers are referred to the Sustainable
Development Report www.solvay.com.

Solvay Way for 360° responsibility

_The Solvay Way reference framework consists of 48 lines of
improvement, structured under the form of 23 commitments to stakeholders.
This grid is used by the entities of the Group to evaluate their practices.

In 2013, under the leadership of Sustainable Development management and
supported by a network of 200 correspondents and champions, the framework
was deployed across all the Group’s sites, which have undertaken their first
self-assessments. This annual review has permitted them to define action plans
to facilitate further progress in the way they go about their professions.

The Solvay Way framework conforms to the new international standard ISO 26000
and its performances are evaluated and verified each year by external audit.
Solvay is an active member of the IIRC (International Integrated Reporting Council)
and is part of the pilot working group which aims to integrate key financial and
extra-financial data in a single report.

Priority objectives for 2020

Solvay has identified 13 priorities around five themes relating to preservation of
the environment, innovation, safety and employee development. These include
a 10% reduction in greenhouse gas emissions and primary energy consump-
tion, and a 25% reduction in air emissions of potentially acidifying substances.
Wide-ranging action will be taken to ensure all new products meet the highest
standards as measured by the Sustainable Portfolio Management (SPM) tool.
The Group also commits to undertake a risk analysis of each of its sites over the
next five years and to train all its employees in the Solvay Way initiative.

Commitments to stakeholders

Customers_Solvay is committed to innovating, analyzing and developing its
markets by integrating CSR and applying its CSR approach in its relations with
its customers, particularly in terms of controlling product-related risks.
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With clients facing increasingly stringent regulations
and ever more demanding consumers, Solvay watches
over the safety of its products throughout their lifecycle
and works continuously to reduce their environmental
and social impact. Listening to markets, the Group
is developing a forward-looking vision that > >

5 action lines

1. Achieving excellence in safety, health and
occupational hygiene for everyone on our sites.

2. Realizing an increasing share of our sales
in markets or with activities that meet the
requirements of sustainable development.

3. Continuously improving the performance

of our technologies, processes and products
and our understanding of them, so as to reduce
their environmental impact and prevent
damage to people throughout the lifecycles

of our products.

4. Reducing greenhouse gas emissions, energy
and water consumption, and negative impacts
on soil, water and air quality, as well as the use
of resources, especially non-renewable ones.

5. Developing a wide-ranging and balanced

social dialogue with employee representatives
at national and international level.



- 3 anticipates customers’ needs and guides its R&l. All innovations are eval-
uated against the criteria of the SPM methodology.

Employees_Solvay is committed to providing its employees with safe and healthy
workplaces. It guarantees them respect of their fundamental social rights and fair
treatment. It is also committed to promoting the quality of social dialogue and

employee engagement.

Suppliers

Communities

Perfor-
mance

Customers

&

Maturity
Deployment

Launch

Employees

SOLVAY V\Ml%

Investors Planet

A pioneer in the realm of social policy, Solvay views
the Group’s talents as its main asset and develop-
ing them as part of its mission: it is committed to
developing its employees’ skills and employability.

Planet_Solvay is committed to promoting environ-
mental management, conserving natural resources,
reducing the environmental impact of its activities,
conserving biodiversity and exercising a responsible
influence in its various environments. Solvay’s ambition
is to offer a chemistry whose products and operating
processes are increasingly respectful of the environ-
ment. The Group is keen to reduce the environmental
footprint of its manufacturing processes and to
improve energy efficiency. Priority is given to the use of
renewable and recycled materials, while consuming
less and less energy and resources. Preservation of
water resources is an essential line of action: the goal
here is by 2020 to reduce by 20% the emissions of
substances with a eutrophication potential and by
10% the use of groundwater and drinking water.

Investors_Solvay is committed to generating value
and to managing risk in a responsible manner, to
ensuring the dissemination of and compliance with
good management and governance practices, and to
communicating in an ethical and transparent manner.
By adopting the most stringent governance practices,
publishing its results and the Group’s strategic vision

Jyrki Raina, General Secretary of IndustriALL Global Union

%“IndustriALL: a global agreement
that enables us all to move forward”

Our mission is to ensure  its practices assessed on-site. This is a very
that multinational committing process, for both Solvay and for us.
groups act in a proper Each year, we will conduct two on-site evaluation
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and dignified manner that respects the rights
of their employees worldwide. The global CSR
agreement signed with Solvay is an important
step in our action. It establishes that social
dialogue can be envisaged at an international
level, and has much to offer to a global group.
Solvay undertakes to respect international
labor standards in all its activities - including
those countries that have not ratified these
conventions. It also undertakes to have

missions: one focused on safety, the other

on the implementation of the agreement in all

its aspects - environmental protection, wages,
supplier relations. Specifically, our representatives
will meet employees to examine the Group’s
practices in situ and suggest areas for
improvement. This agreement embodies
IndustriALL’s vision of social dialogue as

a source of mutual progress, a vision that we
are pleased to see shared by Solvay.
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Enhancing the sustainability of procurement Recognized extra-financial k

Solvay is a participant in the creation and implementation of “Together In 2013, the Group’s CSR performance was recog-
for Sustainability”, an initiative by six major chemical companies nized by its inclusion into the DJSI Europe index.
to strengthen the transparency and sustainability of procurement practices. Solvay is also referenced in the FTSE4Good and
This initiative rests on regular audits and assessments of suppliers’ NYSE Euronext Vigeo World 120 extra-financial
responsible practices, based on social and environmental criteria. The benefit indices.

for suppliers lies in having to fill out a single form, accessible to all principals
on an online platform. In 2013, during the pilot phase, Solvay conducted over

500 assessments and audits. Eg\;vnjones l‘ 'II'IP::HH.I
Sustainability Indices v l;:_n:‘l‘
In Collaboration with RobecoSAM «® FISE&Goad _——

on a regular and complete basis, Solvay meets the requirements of transparency ~ Communities_Solvay is committed to the sustaina-

and rigor demanded by market authorities and expected by investors. Its recogni-  ble integration of its sites in their local areas by con-

tion by extra-financial rating agencies in 2013 contributes to the value of the Group.  trolling both manufacturing and supply chain risks,
and by an ever more robust prevention approach.

Suppliers_Solvay is committed to evaluating the CSR performance of its  Solvay has established relationships of trust with its

buyers. It is also committed to optimizing relationships with its suppliers in this  site neighbors, through dialogue, clear information

area with two priorities: defining the responsibility prerequisites it expects them  and strict control of risks and inconvenience to

to meet and integrating these into its selection procedures, and managing and  them. Flows of transport are subject to special vigi-

evaluating their CSR performance. The Group wishes to establish relationships  lance, involving the entire supply chain.

of trust with its suppliers, based on clear and shared ethical principles estab-

lished with the goal of creating sustainable value for all. The involvement of

suppliers alongside the Group is fed by information campaigns, regular meet-

ings, training, and assessments.

- .

YK
-

JOE| Quintart, Occupational Safety Corporate Process Manager

% “Embedding our safety culture
in employee behavior”

One of Solvay’s campaigns for managers and employees. The

priorities is to MTAR has dropped over the past two years from

constantly reduce its 2.92 to 1.06 accidents per million hours worked.
MTAR (frequency of work accidents requiring The objective is to lower this figure further
medical treatment). Two years ago we initiated still by inducing behavior change, with operators
a number of major risk-prevention operations, receiving training in accident prevention
including taking apart and examining major reflexes. We will also be generalizing across
accident-prone scenarios, systematically the Group the improvements made to problem
analyzing accidents, and launching awareness equipment.

Solvay - Annual Report 2013



38

On the ground

“Product safety:
unparalleled expertise”

GRETA VANMARCKE, CORPORATE PROCESS MANAGER OF PRODUCT
REGULATORY AFFAIRS & PRODUCT STEWARDSHIP

For us, managing our products responsibly means con-
stantly improving and going beyond existing regulations,
whether European, REACH, or national. This includes our
voluntary monitoring at global level of “Substances of Very
High Concern” (SVHC)" so as to restrict their use as much
as possible. My team’s responsibility is to ensure the global
implementation of these measures and to ensure the
compliance of internal procedures. We are proud of the
recognition this expertise earns us: for example since 2014
Solvay has chaired CEFIC’s® Strategy Implementation
Group (SIG) for Product Stewardship.

-

“CSR: a driver for Solvay Way”

SANDRINE ROCHAT, GBU ENGINEERING PLASTICS - GLOBAL HSE
& PRODUCT STEWARDSHIP MANAGER, SOLVAY WAY CHAMPION

As a “Champion”, | am responsible for promoting and deploy-
ing Solvay Way best practices in my GBU. Since 2013, 10%
of managers’ variable remuneration has been correlated with
the achievement of concrete sustainable development objec-
tives. This ‘incentive’ has promoted effective deployment of
the approach around the world and the rapid realization of
our two main objectives for the year: the referencing of the
Group in major extra-financial performance indices and, at all
sites, training, mobilizing teams and carrying out Solvay Way

self-assessments.

“Testing our portfolio against
the challenges of sustainable
development”

MICHEL WASHER, DEPUTY CHIEF SUSTAINABILITY OFFICER

We have at Solvay a powerful tool: the Sustainable Portfolio Man-
agement Methodology (SPM). One axis of the SPM matrix measures
the impact of our production processes; the other evaluates the
alignment of our products with the requirements of sustainable
development. We have already analyzed 65% of our net sales with
this tool, and expect to have analyzed at least 80% by end-2015.
Our goal is 20% of our net sales in the SPM “Star”® category in
2020. We are proud of this approach that is recognized as a refer-
ence, and that we shall be making available to everyone with the
help of the consultant who helped us develop it.

“Energy Transition: an offering
adapted to the challenges”

PHILIPPE ROSIER, PRESIDENT OF ENERGY SERVICES

For Solvay, energy transition is at once a challenge and a prom-
ising market. Our contribution takes many forms, through our
environmentally friendly processes and also our participation in
bringing to maturity the energies of the future. One example is the
water-saving solutions we propose to the very dynamic gas
extraction market in the United States. In the field of new energy,
we are investing in the production and distribution of torrefied
biomass, that can replace coal for electricity generation and
large-scale heating. We are also deploying our Solwatt energy
efficiency program at Group sites, with the goal of paring back
the Group’s energy consumption by another 10% by 2020.

(1) These include substances identified by the REACH program as carcinogenic, mutagenic and toxic for reproduction (CMR), and endocrine disruptors.
(2) European Chemical Industry Council. (3) SPM Star: aligned with the needs of sustainable development AND experiencing accelerated growth.
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- Solvay conducts scientific research and innovation for excellence in order to develop products
and processes that are at once efficient, competitive and sustainable. This reflects the Group’s priority
of helping to create solutions that meet the present and future needs of a planet, which will soon

number 9 billion inhabitants.

Constantly

reinventing
ourselves

6,503 km traveled
without fossil fuel

in the United States:
mission accomplished
for the Solar Impulse.




Innovation,
a key lever
of growth

Our planet is undergoing substantial changes linked to human activity, with major underlying issues:
access to health and well-being, climate change, and resource scarcity. To these Solvay has opted to devote
its research and innovation: 22% of net sales in 2013 consisted of products, technologies and applications

less than five years old®.

_Fired up by Solvay’s pioneering spirit, Research and Innovation (R&l)
is tasked with contributing to the responsible growth of the Group with refer-
ence to societal megatrends.

Six R&l areas to meet the challenges of the future

R&l is focusing its efforts on six areas of innovation that it has identified as crucial
for sustainable growth.

Advanced materials: The Group’s expertise in polymers and formulation ena-
bles it to design new, lighter, safer and more efficient functional materials.
Sustainable energy: Solvay is helping to develop alternatives to fossil fuel
consumption: new generation batteries, photovoltaics, bio-energy.

Organic electronics: Solvay is developing increasingly less expensive, higher
performance and resistant materials to improve the sustainability of lighting
devices and screens.

Eco-designed processes: Solvay is developing breakthrough innovations for
itself and its clients, offering diminished raw materials and energy consumption,
reduced emissions and lower investment costs.

ecosystem”

At Solvay, we are convinced
that we can grow only through
- exposure to other mindsets
and approaches. Our close relationship with academia
around the world, especially in mixed laboratories™,
is enriching our work with the long-term vision of basic
research. In Europe, we are working with other chemists
in competitive clusters and institutes of excellence to
advance green chemistry, environmental technologies
and carbon-free energy. Collaborative research with

Louis Neltner, Solvay General Manager Research & Innovation

Advanced formulations: Solvay’s formulation exper-
tise is enabling it to create responsible products
that provide solutions to global issues or contribute
to the health and well-being of consumers.
Renewable chemistry: innovation in renewable or
recycled raw materials contributes to the evolution
of Group products and processes.

A global, interconnected

and open network

Backed by a global network and fed by external
input, Solvay R&l is configured to capture innova-
tion opportunities and turn them into high-value
practical, sustainable and creative applications for
the Group and its markets.

“At the heart of a global innovation

our customers is also being systematized. Finally,

we have chosen to invest, directly or through investment
funds, in start-ups that have leading edge expertise

in areas identified as vital to the future: biotechnology,
photovoltaics and advanced materials. For example,

our partnership with Aonix Advanced Materials will
accelerate the development of recyclable, lightweight,
and high-performance thermoplastic composite
materials, especially for the electronics market.

* Solvay has developed close partnerships with France’s National Centre for Scientific Research (CNRS) and several universities across the world,
working in joint laboratories: Advanced Polymers in Lyon (France), Laboratory of the Future in Bordeaux (France), Complex Fluids in Bristol (USA),
National Scientific and Technological Laboratory for Bioethanol (Brazil) and the Eco-Efficient Products Laboratory (E2P2L) in Shanghai (China).
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The specific feature of Solvay R&l is to be global and interconnected. Its global
network consists of 15 major R&l centers engaged in a dynamic process of
cross-fertilization, 11 advanced laboratories, and 4 mixed units partnered with
leading public research institutions and universities, along with numerous GBU-
level, application-specific laboratories on four continents. This geographical
proximity to markets and customers promotes relevant and rapid operational
innovation.

In addition, the Group is firmly positioned at the heart of a global innovation
ecosystem. Its policy of open innovation allows it to expand its vision, to com-
plement its own skills from outside, and to identify long-term development
opportunities. More than one hundred collaborative projects have emerged
from joint research with customers, academia or cutting-edge expertise.

An excellence-directed approach backed by demanding tools
Just like the rest of the Group, R&l is committed to a continuous improvement
process to increase its efficiency and shorten time to market. Our researchers
work closely with Marketing and Industrial Functions on projects that meet the
present and future needs of end markets. The criteria of responsibility, cost
competitiveness, and consistency with main trends are applied well upstream.
An eco-design approach, extending the existing Sustainable Portfolio Manage-
ment (SPM) methodology, was introduced in 2013. This will gradually be applied
to the entire portfolio of projects. In this way, each new project is evaluated to
measure its environmental footprint and its societal acceptance throughout its
life, from drawing board to implementation.

In France, the Laboratory of the Future® is designing “fast flow” tools and research

methodologies to shorten the time-to-market of innovations.

(1) These terms include new products or existing products benefiting from new processes
introduced in the last five years; directed at new or existing applications.

(2) Laboratoire du Futur: a joint research cluster of Solvay, CNRS and the University
of Bordeaux-1.
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Innovation tools to match
Asia’s potential

In Asia, three major “Multi-BU" R&I centers are
facilitating cross-fertilization between differ-
ent markets and technologies. In Seoul (Korea),
RE&l is dedicated to electronics and engineering
plastics. In India, the new Vadodara center
focuses on renewable chemistry and materials
science. The Shanghai (China) center is sup-
porting the regional development of the GBUs,
including a mixed eco-innovation research
center, in which Solvay is partnering with Chi-
nese and French universities. Solvay also has in
Asia a dozen application, process improvement
and innovation laborataries. These include the
Singapore laboratory dedicated to health and
beauty, agrochemicals and oil & gas.

Key figures k
15
major R&l centers

1,950

employees

€ zéo m

R&l effort

J
%
80%
of Group R&Il expenditure
is managed by the GBUs

252

patents applied for in 2013




Ahead of the pack

In sustainable mobility

The global transport market is growing, and with it energy consumption and CO, emissions. How do
we control this growth and reduce its impacts? What alternatives can we propose? Faced with
regulatories and consumers pressure, industrial transport sector specialists are looking for solutions.
Solvay Research and Innovation makes available to them its expertise in materials structure and
automotive pollution control, for improving existing and future technologies and preparing the future.

Lightweight
materials for leaner
consumption

- The lighter a vehicle, the less
energy it needs to propel itself.
Solvay's ultra-lightweight,
ultra-high performance
engineering plastics can pare
back a vehicle’s weight by
up to 20%.

- These advanced materials,
which are also fully recyclable,
replace metal in many
applications like structural
parts (seats) and bodywork.

- For complex engine block
structures, high-performance
foams and fire and shock
resistant composite materials
meet the most stringent
standards.

Green technology
for less polluting
vehicles

- Solvay's technological solutions
contribute to reducing polluting
particulate emissions.

- Catalytic converters systems for
petrol and diesel engines based on
rare earths enable particulate filters
to be completely regenerated at
low temperature in a very short
time. This technology can eliminate
99% of soot emissions from diesel
car exhausts.

- Highly dispersible silica is used
to produce energy-saving tires,
which directly contribute to reducing
a vehicle's CO, emissions. Since
being launched, they have saved
the equivalent of almost
18 billion liters of fuel.

Contribution to success
of electric vehicles

- Economic competitiveness and
long-term autonomy are the two

prerequisites for the full expansion of

the electric vehicle market.

- Solvay has developed solutions
(electrolytes, salts, binders, dividers)
that improve the performance of
lithium (Li-ion) batteries.

- In a longer term perspective,
researchers are developing a new
generation of more efficient and
safer batteries.

- Solvay also designs fire-retardant
materials and heat-resistant
engineering plastics notably used
for electric energy storage and
management, thereby contributing
to the emergence of hybrid and
electric engines.
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More performance
under the hood

- Solvay's fluoroelastomers
improve the performance of
fuel injectors and its high
temperature-resistant polymers
are used in turbo and air intake
systems.

- Researchers are also developing
specialty polymers-based
solutions for heat-management
systems, which allow more
effective seals to be produced
at very low temperatures.

- Solvay's heat-resistant
engineering plastics ensure
the safety of under-hood parts
and improve engine efficiency.




Solutions for responsible
energy management

With the planet’s fossil energy resources dwindling, how do we go about
ensuring alternative solutions? What course should energy transition take?

How do we help consumers and industries improve their performances? Faced
with these issues, of direct concern, Solvay R&l proposes impactful solutions.

Its teams are working along two avenues: saving resources by optimizing
consumption, and the competitiveness of alternative energies.

Promoting the emergepté
of alternative energies

- Solvay's pioneering solutions incredSEsEAB
performance, competitiveness
and attractiveness of existifiS¥AFOCESSES
and solutions.

- In collaboratiemWithsplayersintthe
photovoltaic market; Solvay is developing

new materials that improve the efficiency,

durability and ease of use
of solar panels.

- Researchers are also developing new
technologies to optimize the use of
biomass as a source of energy.

Storage and recycling
for optimized flows

- In countries that encourage carbon-free
energy, energy storage to meet peak
demand is a major challenge.

- Solvay teams are contributing to the
development of new generations of lithium-
based batteries, faster-charging and with
greater storage capacities.

- They are also looking at new catalytic
processes for capturing and recovering
carbon dioxide (CO,).

- The Group is exploring alternative avenues

such as solar pond technology that can store
solar energy in a body of salt water.
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Reducing resources
consumption

- Solvay teams are developing industrial
processes that optimize energy and
resources consumptions and promote the
recycling of raw materials and industrial
discharges.

- Solvay's solutions enable its clients
to reduce their own consumption of
resources. Solutions using surfactants,
guar and polymers improve the efficiency
of existing extraction processes in the ol
and mining industry, increase recovery
from mature fields, and substantially limit
their impact on the environment.

- In the United States, Solvay regenerates
and recycles sulfuric acid for oil refineries.
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Financial information

Management report

1 Management report

The management report for the accounting period ending on
December 31, 2013, consisting of pages 48 to 64, 149 to 161
(Management of Risks) and 164 to 196 (Corporate Governance), has
been prepared in accordance with Articles 96 and 119 of the Belgian
Companies’ Code and was approved by the Board of Directors on
February 24, 2014. It covers both the consolidated accounts of the
Solvay group and the statutory accounts of Solvay SA.

In this section, Solvay is presenting its 2012 Income Statement
restated for:

m the Group’s new business organization effective as from January 1,
2013;

m the application of IAS 19 revised;

= the Group’s European Chlorovinyls activities planned to be
contributed to the JV with Ineos.

The term “restated” throughout this document must be understood
as per above considerations, unless otherwise stated.

The European chlorovinyls business activities are reflected as
“Assets Held For Sale” on the Balance Sheet (in one single line) and
as discontinued operations in the Income

As from December 31, 2013, Benvic (the PVC compounding business)
is reflected in the Balance Sheet as “Assets Held for Sale”, but as
continued operations in the Income Statement.

Chemlogics is consolidated in the financial statements from
November 1, 2013.

Furthermore, Solvay is also presenting adjusted income statement
performance indicators that exclude non-cash Purchase Price
Allocation (PPA) accounting impacts related to Rhodia acquisition.

1.1 Highlights of 2013

= Group net sales at € 9,938 million, down (5)% year on year;

u REBITDA at € 1,663 million (€ 1,896 min 2012), overall flat allowing
for CER phase out, exceptional guar effects and Chemlogics;

= Adjusted Net Income, Group share at 378 million (€ 690 million in
2012) mainly due to portfolio related non-recurring items;

= Adjusted earnings per share at € 4.54 (€ 8.37 in 2012);

= Strong Free Cash Flow at € 524 million; net debt decreased by
€ 23 million to € 1,102 million. € 1,200 million hybrid financing
accounted as equity;

= Stable dividend proposed compared to 2012: € 3.20 gross per
share, € 2.40 net.

Adjusted
In € million 2012 restated
Net sales 9,938 10,515
REBITDA 1,663 1,896
REBITDA as % of net sales 17% 18%
REBIT 1,035 1,303
Total depreciation and amortization 603 593
EBIT 796 1,357
Net income, Solvay share 378 690
Earnings per share (basic) (in €) 4.54 8.37
Research expenditure 237 247
Capital expenditures (continuing operations) 708 640
Capital expenditures (discontinued operations) 102 145
Free cash flow 524 787
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1.2 Business performance and analysis

Management analysis convention

In addition to the consolidated IFRS accounts for 2012 (historical and
restated) and 2013 provided in pages 65 to 141 (Financial Statements)
in this report, Solvay is disclosing “Adjusted” Profit & Loss information
and analysis in order to provide a more meaningful appreciation of the
economic and financial performance of the Group and its Business
segments between periods.

Adjusted Profit & Loss indicators referring to 2012 and 2013 exclude
non-cash Purchase Price Allocation (PPA) accounting impacts related
to the Rhodia acquisition.

All references to year-on-year (year on year) evolution must be
understood on an adjusted basis for 2012 and 2013, and restated
2012, unless otherwise stated.

Furthermore, on a pro forma basis Solvay 2011 historical figures were
presented in order to account for Rhodia’s results as if the acquisition
had become effective from January 1st, 2011. Likewise, historical
figures were restated to harmonize accounting policies among the
two former legacy groups, aligning policies along those currently used
by the new Solvay. Furthermore, pro forma results exclude impacts
from i) purchase price allocation entries; ii) non-recurring acquisition
costs related to the Rhodia transaction and iii) financial revenues on
cash deposits and investments.

The term “Net sales” refers to the sales of goods and value-added
services corresponding to Solvay’s know-how and core business. Net
sales exclude other revenues primarily comprising commodity and
utility trading transactions and other revenues deemed as incidental
by the Group (for example temporary).

Furthermore, Solvay uses for its analysis and financial communications
non-GAAPY indicators, the definitions of which are the following:

u REBITDA is defined as operating result before depreciation
and amortization, non-recurring items, temporary step-up of
inventories related to the Rhodia and Chemlogics acquisitions and
pre-operational gain/(losses) of Rusvinyl resulting from financial
expenses (not capitalized);

(1) Generally accepted accounting principles.

= non-recurring items mainly include:

= gains and losses on the sale of subsidiaries, joint-ventures,
associates accounted for under the equity method that do not
qualify as discontinued operations;

® acquisition costs of new business;

= gains and losses on the sale of real estate not directly linked to
an operating activity;

= major restructuring charges;

= impairment losses resulting from the shutdown of an activity
or a plant;

= impairment losses resulting from testing Cash-Generating Units
for impairment (a CGU includes tangible assets, intangible
assets and allocated goodwill if any);

= the impact of significant litigation;

= the remediation costs not generated by on-going production
facilities (shut-down sites, discontinued activities, etc.);

= other material operating income or expenses resulting from
unusual events and likely to distort the analysis and comparability
of the Group’s performance;

m Free Cash Flow is calculated as cash flow from operating activities
(including dividends from associates and joint ventures) + cash
flow from investing activities (excluding acquisitions and sales of
subsidiaries and other investments);

= net debt is defined as short and long-term financial debt less cash
and cash equivalents and other current receivables — Financial
instruments.

Solvay believes that these measurements are useful tools for analyzing
and explaining changes and trends in its historical results of operations,
as they allow performance to be compared on coherent basis. They are
not, however, subject to audit and are not performance measurements
with regard to IFRS. The methods of calculating changes used by
Solvay may differ from those used by other companies.
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Analysis of the consolidated results for the accounting

period ending December 31, 2013

Analysis of Group operational performance

IFRS Adjusted

In € million restated restated
Sales 10,367 10,910 10,367 10,910
Other non-core revenues 429 395 429 395
Net sales 9,938 10,515 9,938 10,515
Cost of goods sold (8,043) (8,547) (8,043) (8,502)
Gross margin 2,324 2,364 2,324 2,409
Commercial and administrative costs (1,199) (1,076) (1,199) (1,076)
Research and development costs (237) (247) (237) (247)
Other operating gains and losses (94) 97) 59 35
Earnings from associates and joint ventures accounted for

using the equity method 92 183 92 183
REBIT 886 1,127 1,035 1,303
Non-recurring items (239) 55 (239) 55
EBIT 647 1,181 796 1,357
Net income 315 580 422 707
Non controlling interests (44) (17) (44) (17)
Net income Solvay share 270 563 378 690
Earnings per share (basic) in € 3.25 6.84 4.54 8.37

The table hereafter reconciles IFRS results (which include PPA impacts related to the Rhodia acquisition) with adjusted results (which exclude

non cash PPA impacts) for the FY 2013.

In € million 2012 restated
EBIT IFRS 647 1,181
Non recurring items (-) 239 (55)
REBIT IFRS 886 1,127
Adjustments of Rhodia inventories at FV (PPA) 0 45
Losses from Rusvinyl (pre-operational stage) accounted for using the equity method 11 0
Adjustments of Chemlogics retention plan 1 0
Adjustments of Chemlogics inventories at FV (PPA) 13 0
IFRS depreciation and amortization (recurring) 752 724
REBITDA (Key Performance Indicator monitored by Management) 1,663 1,896
NET SALES

Change in net sales Net sales 2012 Conversion

In € million restated Volume Price Forex Scope Net sales 2013  YoY evolution
Solvay group 10,515 (183) (202) (328) 136 9,938 (5)%
Advanced Formulations 2,565 (49) 61) (121) 98 2,432 5)%
Advanced Materials 2,743 (20) (98) (94) 19 2,550 (7)%
Performance Chemicals 3,162 43 (25) (57) 2 3,125 (1)%
Functional Polymers 1,888 61) (31) (61) 17 1,762 (7)%
Corporate & Business Services 157 97) 13 (6) 0 67 (57)%

Group net sales amounted to € 9,938 million (€ 10,515 million in
2012), down (5)% year on year, due to volumes (2)%, pricing (2)% in a
deflationary raw material environment, forex changes (3)%, and scope
effect +1%. Excluding the CER phase-out, volumes declined (1)%. Net
sales were down (5)% in Advanced Formulations, (7)% in Advanced
Materials, (1)% in Performance Chemicals and (7)% in Functional
Polymers.
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Operating elements

Costs of goods sold

The cost of goods sold on an adjusted basis amounted to
€ (8,043) million, down 5.5% compared to prior year. More than half
of this decline was due to the foreign exchange rate effects, and
more specifically in respect of the Brazilian real, the US dollar and the
Japanese yen depreciations compared to the euro. The remainder
of the decrease in costs of goods sold was mainly due to lower raw
materials prices in a general deflationary context in most businesses
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and to a lesser extent to the positive impact of competitiveness
improvement excellence initiatives.

Cost of goods sold in 2013 IFRS accounts also amounted to
€ (8,043) million. It included a € (13) million impact corresponding to the
temporary inventory step-up relative to the Chemlogics’ acquisition.

Commercial and administrative costs

Commercial and administrative costs of € (1,199) million in 2013 (both
on an adjusted and on an IFRS basis) rose by € (123) million or by
11.4% compared to the prior year. This increase is primarily due to
Chemlogics acquisition, the inflation experienced over the different
regions where the Group operates and to some exceptional expenses
linked especially to the integration of Solvay and Rhodia.

Research and development costs

Research and development costs of € (237) million in 2013 (both on
an adjusted and on an IFRS basis) decreased by 4% compared to
prior year but remained stable at 2.3% on net sales. The decrease in
costs was due to an increase in capitalized development expenses
while the total cash out for research and development increased by
3% compared to 2012.

Financial information

Management report

Other operating gains and losses

Other operating gains and losses in 2013 amounted to € 55 million
on an adjusted basis, compared to € 35 million in 2012. In 2013, the
balance of other gains and losses includes mainly the realignment of
insurance policies of the Group which led to the reversal of provisions
for € 22 million.

On an IFRS basis, other operating gains and losses amounted to
€ (94) million, or a € (149) million difference with the adjusted accounts
and corresponding to the depreciation of PPA on fixed assets relative
to Rhodia’s acquisition. Please refer to note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Earnings from associates and joint ventures accounted for
using the equity method

Earnings from associates and joint ventures, accounted for using the
equity method, amounted to € 92 million compared with € 183 million
in 2012. The most important contributors in 2013 were Hindustan
Gum & Chemicals, Solvay Sodi, Deven and Peroxidos Do Brasil.

The decrease of € 91 million is largely driven by the reduction of Indian
native-guar JV Hindustan Gum & Chemicals’ (Hichem) result after
2012 exceptional guar pricing conditions.

REBITDA
Others
Foreign including
Changes in adjusted REBITDA 2012 exchange Volume & Cost equity
In € million restated  Structure conversion mix Price of goods Fixed costs earnings
Group 1,896 16 (36) (126) (202) 205 (36) (55) 1,663

In a challenging macro economic environment and against demanding
comparables, REBITDA amounted to € 1,663 million (€ 1,896 million
in 2012), broadly flat allowing for the CER phase out, exceptional guar
effects and Chemlogics.

Overall pricing power was preserved in a deflationary raw material
context with the reduction of selling prices of € (202) million more than
offset by savings in raw material and energy costs of € 205 million.
By Operating Segment, pricing power at Advanced Materials and
at Engineering Plastics (within Functional Polymers) compensated
for a major margin squeeze at Advanced Formulations, where

Depreciation and Amortization charges

Depreciation and Amortization charges amounted in 2013 to
€ (603) million on an adjusted basis versus € (593) million in 2012.

Depreciation and Amortization charges in 2013 IFRS accounts
amounted to € (752) million or a € (149) million difference with the
period adjusted accounts and corresponding to the depreciation of
PPA on fixed assets relative to Rhodia’s acquisition.

Non-recurring ltems

Non-recurring ltems were € (239) million (€ 55 million in 2012) and
included restructuring expenses, primarily from Soda Ash and
integration plans € (115) million. Non-cash impairment charges
amounted to € (65) million (Benvic and Plextronics). Other costs of
€ (59) million were linked to environmental and litigation provisions.
As a reminder, 2012 included a € 149 million positive impact from the
partial reversal of impairments from Soda Ash.

the Novecare business unit suffered from the impacts in the guar
derivatives business. Excellence initiatives across businesses and
functions helped to substantially mitigate inflationary effects on the
Group’s fixed cost base.

The year on year REBITDA evolution per Operating Segment
broke down as follows: Advanced Formulations (29)%, Advanced
Materials 3%, Performance Chemicals (3)% and Functional
Polymers (7)%.

The Group’s REBITDA margin on net sales came in at 16.7%
compared with 18.0% in 2012.

OPERATING RESULT

Adjusted EBIT amounted to € 796 million (€ 1,357 million in 2012),
down (41)%, and included amortization and depreciation charges of
€ (603) million. On an IFRS basis, EBIT was at € 647 million. The
difference between IFRS and adjusted figures reflects the Rhodia PPA
depreciation impact of € (149) million.
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Analysis of operational performance by Operating Segment

Adjusted

Year on year
In € million 2012 restated evolution %
Net sales 9,938 10,515 (5)%
Advanced Formulations 2,432 2,565 (5)%
Advanced Materials 2,551 2,743 (7)%
Performance Chemicals 3,125 3,162 (1)%
Functional Polymers 1,763 1,888 ()%
Corporate & Business Services 67 157 (57)%
REBITDA 1,663 1,896 (12)%
Advanced Formulations 369 518 (29)%
Advanced Materials 646 627 3%
Performance Chemicals 724 750 3)%
Functional Polymers 93 100 ()%
Corporate & Business Services (169) (99) (71)%
EBIT 796 1,357 (41)%
Advanced Formulations 235 427 (45)%
Advanced Materials 460 453 2%
Performance Chemicals 457 680 (33)%
Functional Polymers (37) 100 (137)%
Corporate & Business Services (319) (302) (6)%

ADVANCED FORMULATIONS (PREVIOUSLY NAMED CONSUMER CHEMICALS)
Adjusted Year on year
In € million 2012 restated evolution %
Net sales 2,432 2,565 (5)%
Novecare 1,581 1,684 (6)%
Coatis 486 506 (4)%
Aroma Performance 365 376 (3)%
REBITDA 369 518 (29)%

Net Sales of Advanced Formulations amounted to € 2,432 million
(€ 2,565 million in 2012) while the operating segment’s REBITDA
reached € 369 million (€ 518 m in 2012).

Performance at Advanced Formulations was mainly impacted in 2013
by adverse developments in Novecare’s guar business:

(i) The phase-out of 2012’s exceptional profit on peak native guar
prices at our JV Hichem (accounting for c. € (100) million year on
year decline), (i) a c. € (50) million exceptional adverse guar derivative
margin effect year on year.
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Novecare’s other businesses grew, in particular Agro, Oil &Gas (guar
excluded) and Coatings.

The performance of Coatis improved during the year thanks to positive
pricing power driven by sales indexed in US dollars and despite Brazil's
difficult economic situation.

Aroma Performance continued its growth in food & flavor volumes.
Volume growth in fluor was offset by price decreases in Hydroquinone
(which compares to high hydroquinone prices in 2012 when supplies
were tight after an unexpected operational outage at a large
competitor).
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Products by GBU Applications Markets Trademarks Competitors
Novecare

Surfactants AGRHO®, AKZO Nobel, BASF,
STARGUAR®,  Clariant, Croda, Dow, Koch,
AGHRO N-PROTECT®, Huntsman, Lamberti Grp

Food, Agro & Feed SOPROPHOR®

Dispersion, foaming, Solutions RHODOLINE®

- conditioning, surface Consumer Goods o -

Amines modification, intermediate, & Healthcare RHODIASOLY Oxiteno, Stepan

Synthetic and natural
polymers

Phosphorous chemistry

Coatis

gelling, rheology

Industrial Applications
Energy & Environment

SIPOMER®, MIRACARE®,
RHEOMER®, JAGUAR®

MACKAM®, PROBAN®,
TIGUAR®, TOLCIDE®

Phenol and derivatives

Ketonic solvents

Acetic solvents
Glyceryn-based solvents

Aroma Performance

Synthetic resins, molding
compounds, polycarbonate,
polymer additives

Adhesives, cosmetics, mining
frother

Inks, de-greasers, fim
formation aids, solubilisation
of actives and resins

Consumer Goods

& Healthcare

Automotive & Aeronautics
Building & Construction
Industrial Applications
Food, Agro & Feed
Solutions

AUGEO™

Dow, Ineos, Shell

Arkema, Sasol, Halterman

Celanese, Ineos, Eastman

Natural vanillin

Vanillin & ethylvanillin

Guaiacol, pyrocatechol

Sandalwood

Hydroquinone

MeHQ, TBC

Triflic acid & triflic acid
anhydride (TA, TAA) and
derivates (LITFSI, TFSK)

Cyclopentanone

Flavors, fragrances

Flavors, fragrances, crop
protection

Fragrances

Monomers stabilizers,
anti-oxidants

Monomers stabilizers

Antistatic applications,
energy storage

Fragrances, electronics

Food, Agro & Feed
Solutions
Consumer Goods
& Healthcare

Food, Agro & Feed
Solutions
Consumer Goods
& Healthcare

Consumer Goods
& Healthcare

Consumer Goods
& Healthcare

Food, Agro & Feed
Solutions

Automotive & Aeronautics
Industrial Applications
Consumer Goods

& Healthcare

Food, Agro & Feed
Solutions

Consumer Goods
& Healthcare
Industrial Applications

RHOVANIL® NATURAL,
GOVANIL™ NATURAL,

RHOVANIL®, RHODIAROME®,
GOVANIL™, GOVANIL™
INTENSE, RHOVEA™

RHODIANTAL® ORIGINAL,
RHODIANTAL® CANDALUM

RHODIASOLV® XPT

Borregaard, Jiaxin,

many small Chinese
competitors(dilin, Anhui),
major F&Fs for formulated
vanilla flavor Govani™ (Prova,
Givaudan, Firmenich)

Camlin

Many small Indian companies

Camlin, Eastman, Goodyear,
Mitsui, Ube, Sanjili, Nalco,
GE Betz, Evonik, AH Marks
Central Glass, Sinochem,
Syngenta, BASF, Bayer
Cropscience

Central Glass, 3M, Asian
players

BASF, Nippon Zeon, CST,
Chinese players

Solvay - Annual Report 2013



Financial information

Management report
Business performance and analysis

ADVANCED MATERIALS

Adjusted Year on year
In € million 2012 restated evolution %
Net sales 2,551 2,743 (7)%
Specialty Polymers 1,288 1,348 4)%
Silica 416 382 9%
Rare Earth Systems 298 434 (31)%
Special Chemicals 549 579 (5)%
REBITDA 646 627 3%

Net Sales of Advanced Materials ended at € 2,551 million
(€ 2,743 million in 2012). REBITDA increased 3% to € 646 million
driven by a favorable product mix and pricing power. Performance
was supported by the positive momentum in Specialty Polymers,
Silica and Special Chemicals.

Rare Earth Systems was penalized by sustained price decreases in
rare earths and subsequent margin squeeze, which however stabilized

Products by GBU Applications

during the year. Specialty Polymers posted growth in a difficult
environment thanks to the delivery of its excellence programs. Silica
benefited from its strong position in the energy efficient tire market
and Special Chemicals succeeded in the execution of its strategic exit
from loss-making Life Science businesses.

Markets Trademarks Competitors

Specialty Polymers

Consumer Goods
& Healthcare

Consumer Goods
& Healthcare

Healthcare, consumer goods

SOLVIVA®, UDEL® PSU,
DIOFAN® PVDC

RADEL® PPSU, IXEF® PARA,
IXAN® PVDC, AMODEL® PPA

Victrex, BASF, AGC

Sabic, EMS, BASF

Automotive & Aeronautics TECNOFLONS®, DuPont, Dyneon, Daikin,
AMODEL® PPA EMS, DSM
Automotive, advanced Automotive & Aeronautics RADEL® PPSU & FOAMS, Sabic, Evonik, Victrex
transportation AJEDIUM FILMS,
A " KETASPIRE® PEEK,
romatics TORLON® PAI
Fluoropolymers - - - -
High-barrier polymers Smart devices, electrical, Electrical & Electronics  IXEF® PARA, AMODEL® PPA, EMS, DuPont, PolyOne
Cross-linkable compounds electronics COGEGUM® XLPO
Industrials Industrial Applications SOLEF® PVDF, HALAR®  Arkema, Dyneon, DuPont, 3M

Energy & Environment

Energy, water

Construction

Silica

Energy & Environment
Energy & Environment
Building & Construction

ECTFE, FOMBLIN® PFPE

SOLEF® PVDF, KETASPIRE®
PEEK, TORLON® PAI

SOLEF® PVDF
SOLEF® PVDF, UDEL® PSU

SOLEF® PVDF, RADEL®
PPSU, UDEL® PSU

Arkema, Victrex, Evonik

Kureha, Arkema
BASF, Arkema
BASF, Arkema

Highly dispersible silica Energy-efficient tires
(HDS)

Polymer reinforcement

Automotive & Aeronautics ZEOSIL®, ZEOSIL® PREMIUM

Automotive & Aeronautics

Evonik, PPG, OSC

Industrial Applications

Oral care (toothpaste)
Precipitated silica
(conventional)

Rare Earth Systems

Nutrition

ZEOSIL® Evonik, PPG, OSC

Consumer Goods TIXOSIL® JM Huber, PQ
& Healthcare Corporation, WR Grace,
Evonik, OSC

Food, Agro & Feed TIXOSIL® JM Huber, PQ
Solutions Corporation, WR Grace,

Evonik, OSC

Rare earth oxide
formulations
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Automotive catalysts

Energy-efficient lighting
Semiconductor polishing

Automotive & Aeronautics

Electrical & Electronics
Electrical & Electronics
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Products by GBU Applications Markets Trademarks Competitors
Special Chemicals
Hydrogen fluoride Refineries, steel & surface Industrial Applications DuPont, Honeywell, Lanxess,

Fluor-based compounds

TFAC, TFA, TFAH, TFAEt,
TFK, ETFBO, Other CF,

Solkane 227ph, Solkane
134aph

Precipitated calcium
carbonate (PCC)

Electronic grade H,0, and
HF and NF,F

Barium compounds

Strontrium compounds

treatment, chemical industry

High voltage engineering, wet
chemicals for chip etching
and cleaning, chemicals for
Li-batteries

Insulation, energy saving
Brazing, refrigerants
Solvents (precision cleaning)

Buidling blocks in active
ingredients, intermediates

Propellants in asthma sprays
and other medical sprays

Sealant

Paint
Plastisol

Semiconductors, displays,
photovoltaic

Paints, coatings, batteries,
plastics, paper

Ceramic capacitors, display
and photovoltaic glasses

Display and photovoltaic
glasses, ferrites

Electrical & Electronics

Building & Construction

Automotive & Aeronautics
Industrial Applications

Industrial Applications

Consumer Goods
& Healthcare
Food, Agro & Feed
Solutions

Consumer Goods
& Healthcare

Building & Construction

Building & Construction
Automotive
Electrical & Electronics

Automotive Aeronautics
Electrical & Electronics
Building & Construction

Electrical & Electronics

Electrical & Electronics

FOR C,F,: SIFREN®

SOLKANE®, IXOL
NOCOLOK®,

SOLKATHERM® SES36
SOLVOKANE®

SOLKANE®
SOCAL®, WINNOFIL®

SOCAL®
SOCAL®, WINNOFIL®

DDF, 3F, Mexichem, China
Yingpeng, Zheijang Sanmei,
Shandong donuye Group
Kemeite, Liming, Henan
Huaneng Fluoride and
others, HaloPolymer, Asahi
Glass, Kanto Denka, Show
Denko, Cental Glas, Linde,
AirProducts

Honeywell, Arkema, DuPont,
Albarnali, Chemtura

DuPont, Honeywell

DuPont, Honeywell, Arkema,
Central Glass, Asahi, 3M

Halocarbon, SRF, Sinochem,
Lantian

Mexichem, DuPont

Shiraishi-Omya, SMI (UK),
Cales de Llierca

Schaefer Kalk

Cales de Llierca, SMI

BASF, Stella Chemifa,
Honeywell, Dongwoo
Finechem
Sachtleben, Chinese
producers

Sakai Chemicals, Nippon
Chemicals

Sakai Chemicals, Nippon
Chemicals

PERFORMANCE CHEMICALS

In € million

Net sales

Essential Chemicals
Acetow

Eco Services

Emerging Biochemicals
REBITDA

Adjusted Year on year
2012 restated evolution %

3,125 3,162 (1)%
1,756 1,811 (3)%
658 616 7%
288 314 (8)%
424 421 1%
724 750 (3)%

Net Sales of Performance Chemicals ended at € 3,125 million,
(€ 3,162 million in 2012) while its REBITDA amounted to € 724 million
(€ 750 million in 2012). The record results at Acetow did not fully offset

the result at Emerging Biochemicals.

Essential Chemicals delivered strong REBITDA despite challenging
market conditions in the flat glass sector early in 2013 and despite
prices pressure in some export markets, a performance that

operations. The targeted € 100 million cost saving plan (by year-end
2015) is on track and the closure of the Povoa plant was completed
in January 2014.

Acetow enjoyed strong demand and volumes sold out coupled with

was further supported by improved results in the US Green River
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Products by GBU Applications Markets Trademarks Competitors
Essential Chemicals
Soda Ash & Derivatives
Flux in flat gass Building & Construction SOLVAY SODA® DENSE
Automotive & Aeronautics
Energy & Environment
Flux i tai | Food, Agro & Feed SOLVAY SODA® DENSE ) )
L In container giass o0 grgomf)ﬁs Tata Chemicals, FMC, Ciech,
Na,CO, soda ash Consumer Goods Sisecam, Nirma, Bashkim,
& Healthcare OCl, Eti-Soda, Novacarb
Water softener in detergents Consumer Goods SOLVAY SODA® LIGHT
& Healthcare
Metallurgy Industrial Applications SOLVAY SODA® DENSE
Supplement in animal feed, Food, Agro & Feed BICAR Z®, BICAR® FCC, Church & Dwight,
supplement in food Solutions BI-PROTEC® FMC, Natural Soda,
- : : Tata Chemicals, Sisecam
NaHCO, sodium Flue gas cleaning agent Energy & Environment SOLVAIR® ¢ o O ’
bicarbonate Industrial Applications Ciech, Bashkim, NEgégng
Supplement in pharma Consumer Goods BICAR® PHARMA, BICAR®
& Healthcare CODEX
Peroxides
Bleach for wood pulp & paper Consumer Goods INTEROX®  Arkema, Evonik, FMC, EKA,

Hydrogen peroxide

Peracetic acid

industry

Disinfection & aseptic
packaging

Metals & mining, chemical
synthesis HPPO

Disinfection & aseptic
packaging

& Healthcare

Food, Agro & Feed
Solutions

Industrial Applications

Food, Agro & Feed
Solutions
Energy & Environment

INTEROX®, PARAMOVE®
INTEROX®

PROXITANE®, OXYSTRONG®

Kemira, OCI
Arkema, Evonik, FMC, MGC

Arkema, Evonik, FMC

Evonik, Kemira, FMC

Sodium percarbonate Bleaching for detergent Consumer Goods OXYPER® Evonik, Kemira, OCl, FMC
powder & Healthcare
Acetow
Cellulose acetate tow RHODIA® FILTERTOW Celanese, Eastman,
Daicel/Mitsubishi, Chinese
companies (Jinan, Henan,
Xinyang)
i tte filt
Cellulose acetate tow Cigarette filters Consumer Goods RHODIA DE-TOW™
Cellulose acetate flakes/ & Healthcare RHODIA FILTERSORB™
Silica
Cellulose acetate tow RHODIA COLOURED TOW™
Cellulose acetate flakes Filter tow, yarn, plastics and RHODIA ACETOL® Celanese, Eastman, Daicel/
films Mitsubishi, Pacetati, Fergana
Nitric Acid Foams, fertilizers Automotive & Aeronautics TARANIS™ Yara, Borealis, BASF
Food, Agro & Feed
Solutions
Cellulose acetate compound Packaging for cosmetics and Consumer Goods OCALIO™  Eastman, DuPont, Braskem
food, toys, glasses, tools & Healthcare
electronical devices
Acetylated wood Outdoor applications like Consumer Goods ACCOYA®
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windows, doors, decking,
cladding, shutters, etc as well
for construction work

& Healthcare
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Products by GBU Applications Markets Trademarks Competitors
Eco Services
Regenerated H,SO, Refineries chemical industry Industrial Applications, Chemtrade, DuPont, PVS
Energy & Environment
Sulfuric acid oleum Nylon, paper, mining, Consumer Goods Chemtrade, Cornerstone,
agriculture, water treatment & Healthcare DuPont, PVS, Rentech,
Energy & Environment Southern States, various
smelters, various fertilizer
companies, imports
Alum Mining, agriculture, water Energy & Environment Chemtrade, Kemira, Thatcher
treatment
Emerging Biochemicals
PVC Pipe, fittings, profiles, wires, Building & Construction SIAMVIC®  Thai Plastic & Chemical PCL
cables
Film, sheets Consumer Goods
& Healthcare
Industrial Applications
NaOH caustic soda Multiple applications Consumer Goods AGC Chemicals (Thailand)
& Healthcare
Industrial Applications
Food, Agro & Feed
Solutions
Bio-based epichlorohydrin Epoxy resins Building & Construction, EPICEROL® Samsung Fine Chemicals
Electrical & Electronics, Dow
Consumer Goods
& Healthcare, Automotive
& Aeronautics
Epichlorohydrin
FUNCTIONAL POLYMERS
Adjusted Year on year
In € million 2012 restated evolution %
Net sales 1,763 1,888 (7)%
Polyamide 1,557 1,688 (8)%
Chlorovinyls 206 200 3%
REBITDA 93 100 (7)%

Net Sales of Functional Polymers amounted to € 1,763 million, down
(7)% from 2012’s € 1,888 million, while the operating segment’s
REBITDA also fell (7)% to € 93 million.

The successful structural repositioning of Engineering Plastics
bolstered performance with volume increases and strong pricing
power. However, performance was held back by a difficult competitive
environment for Polyamide & Intermediates and Fibras.

Discontinued Operations

Performance of the European chlorovinyls business to be contributed
to the planned JV with Ineos stood broadly in line with 2012. Net sales
were € 1,904 million and REBITDA amounted to € 153 million in 2013.
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Polyamide

Polyamide & Intermediates
Adipic acid Polyamide 6.6, other products Industrial Applications, RHODIACID™  Invista, Ascend, CSM-CPEC,
for polyurethane and coating Automotive & Aeronautics, CNPC, BASF, Radici, Asahi,
applications, plasticizers Consumer quds Lanxess
Hexamethylenediamine & Healthcare, Building RHODIAMINE™  Invista, Ascend, BASF, Radici,
& Construction, Electrical CPEC

& Electronics

Polyamide resin: Plastic compounds for Industrial Applications, STABAMID®  Invista, Ascend, BASF, Radici,

m PAG.G
= PAG.10
= PAG.10/6.T

Engineering Plastics, industrial

yamns, textile and fibers
applications, tire cords,
airbags

Automotive & Aeronautics,
Consumer Goods

& Healthcare, Building

& Construction, Electrical
& Electronics

Asahi

Engineering Plastics

Polyamide 6.6 compounds TECHNYL® DuPont, BASF, Radici, Nilit,
TECHNYL STAR® Ascend, Invista
Polyamide 6 compounds TECHNYL® BASF, Lanxess, DSM,
TECHNYL STAR® DuPont, Radici
Recycled Polyamide Metal replacement, TECHNYL®R  Very fragmented competition
compounds fire protection, thermal ) ) TECHNYL® ECO
management, fluid barrier Automotive & Aeronautics, 4EARTH®
Long Chain Polyamide Flectrical & Electronics, TECHNYL EXTEN®  Arkema, Evonik, EMS, UBE
compounds umer 1500ds
& Healthcare,
High temperature Polyamide Industrial Goods TECHNYL® ONE DuPont, EMS, DSM
compounds
Polyamide powders Laser sintering SINTERLINE™ TECHNYL® Evonik, Arkema
POWDERS
Design, simulation services Metal replacement, MMI™ TECHNYL® DESIGN BASF
fire protection, thermal
management, fluid barrier
Fibras
Textile yarns Apparel Consumer Goods AMNI® Hyosung, Taekwang, Nilit,
& Healthcare EMANA® Acelon, Leal ea, Fujian
Staple fiber Abrasives Consumer Goods Invista
& Healthcare
Industrial yarns Sewing threads, tire, MRG Consumer Goods Kordsa, Enka, CSM, SRF
& Healthcare, Automotive
& Aeronautics, Industrial
Applications
CORPORATE & BUSINESS SERVICES
Adjusted Year on year
In € million 2012 restated evolution %
Net sales 67 157 (57)%
Energy Services 67 154 (67)%
Other Corporate & Business Services 0 3 n.m.
REBITDA (169) (99) (71)%

Net sales and REBITDA for 2013 respectively amounted to
€ 67 million and € (169) million. The end of CERs sales resulted in a

REBITDA drop of € 90 million compared to 2012.
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Excellence initiatives across corporate functions and services helped
to neutralize cost inflation, while costs linked to the Group’s 150-year

anniversary celebration and new branding efforts where offset by
one-offs like the positive impact from the realignment of insurance
policies of the Group.
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Energy situation

Energy costs are an important part of the Group’s cost structure.
Net energy costs represented about € 0.9 billion in 2013. Energy
sources were spread over electricity and gas (circa 70%), coke, coal
and anthracite (circa 15%) and steam and others (circa 15%). The
Solvay group has pursued an active energy policy for many years
now. In this context it operates an energy production park with a total
installed capacity of 1,000 MW.

Financial information

Management report

Within the Group, Energy Services focuses on optimizing the Solvay’s
energy purchase costs and carbon emissions. Furthermore, Energy
Services launched an important operating energy efficiency excellence
initiative called Solwatt. It aims at reducing energy consumption and
optimizing energy production on sites. Solwatt integrates also the
medium and long term planning of energy consumption per site. It
is gradually rolled out and will cover all the Group’s manufacturing
sites by 2015. The objective is to reduce by 10% the Group energy
bill by 2016.

Additional comments on the Group consolidated income statement of the FY 2013 (IFRS/adjusted)

IFRS Adjusted

In € millon BN wizresucd TN 2012 restated
EBIT 647 1,181 796 1,357
Net financial expenses, of which:

m Cost of borrowings (187) (167) (187) (167)
m Interest on lending and short term deposits 25 16 25 16
m Other gains and losses on net indebtedness ) 8) 2 8)
m Cost of discounting provisions 87) (200) (87) (200)
Income/losss from available-for-sale investments 40 3) 40 )
Result before tax 437 820 585 997
Income tax (187) (241) (229) (291)
Result from continuing operations 249 579 357 705
Result from discontinued operations 65 1 65 2
Net Income 315 580 422 707
Non controlling interests (44) (17) (44) (17)
Net Income Solvay share 270 563 378 690

Net Financial Expenses narrowed to € (210) million (€ (360) million
in 2012). Net charges on net debt were € (162) million versus €
(151) million in 2012 and included a € 17 million one-off non-cash
income effect from the decision to exercise the 2014 call option of
the € 500 million Rhodia HY bond maturing in 2018.

The cost of discounting provisions for environmental reserves and
pension liabilities narrowed to € (87) million from € (200) million in
2012. This was mainly due to environmental reserves which in 2013
included an overall € 41 million one-off contribution following discount
rates increases, whereas in 2012, decreases in discount rates resulted
in a negative impact of € (50) million.

Income from available for sale investments amounted to € 40 million
(€ (2) million in 2012) and primarily included a € 36 million capital gain
from the disposal of a non-core financial investment.

Adjusted Income Taxes of € (229) million (€ 291 million in 2012)
included provisions for prior-year items worth € (68) million as well as
the recognition of net deferred tax assets movements of € 40 million
which led to a nominal tax rate of 46% (or 35% when taking into
account non-recurring elements).

Net Result from discontinued operations was € 65 million
(€ 1 million in 2012). Net results comprised 3 principal elements: Net
income of the European chlorovinyls activities to be contributed to the
JV with Ineos € 27 million, the non-cash impairment resulting from
the fair valuation of Solvay Indupa € (68) million and the last cash
milestone payment of € 100 million received in connection with the
disposed pharma business.

Adjusted Net Income was € 422 million (€ 707 million in 2012).
Adjusted Net income Group Share came in at € 378 m and Adjusted
basic earnings per share at € 4.54. On an IFRS basis, Net income
Group share amounted to € 270 million.
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- Net income, Group share (IFRS) k
In € million
1,776
516 584
247 270
2009 2010 20M 2012 2013

— Adjusted net income, Group share k
In € million
727 690
378
20Mm 2012 2013
proforma restated

Financing structure

The Net financial debt amounted to € 1,102 million at the end of
December 2013, a reduction of € 23 million, versus € 1,125 million at
the end of December 2012. Gross debt reduced from € 3,652 million
at the end of 2012 to € 3,515 million, using the available cash to repay
debt. In 2014, Solvay has the opportunity to repay € 500 million EMTN
bond (maturing January 2014) and has decided to exercise the first
call option in 2014 related to € 500 million Rhodia senior High Yield
notes maturing in 2018.

In November 2013, following the acquisition of Chemlogics for
US$ 1,345 million financed with available cash, the Group issued
€ 1.2 billion hybrid bonds (treated as equity under IFRS) with the aim
to further strengthen its balance sheet ahead of the refinancing of its
debt maturities from 2014 onwards.

Equity amounted to € 7,453 million at the end of 2013, compared to
€ 6,574 million at the end of 2012.

At the end of 2013, the net debt to equity ratio was 14.8%.

Solvay’s long and short-term ratings are Baa1/P2 (negative outlook)
at Moody’s and BBB+/A2 (stable outlook) at Standard & Poor’s.

Free Cash Flow

Free Cash Flow was € 524 million, and included cash flow from
discontinued operations for € 235 million.

Cash flow from operating activities was € 1,278 million compared
to € 1,457 million last year. Besides net income of € 315 million, it
consisted of:

= depreciation, amortization and impairments amounting to
€ 929 million;

= change in working capital amounting to € 54 million, whereof
industrial working capital of € 17 million for continuing operation.

Cash flow from investing activities was € (1,732) million included
Chemlogics acquisition € (881) million and capital expenditures which
amounted to € (810) million including € (102) million from discontinued
operations.

Investments

In € million Capital expenditures in 2013
Advanced Formulations 136
Advanced Materials 213
Performance Chemicals 187
Functional Polymers 74
Corporate & Business Services 98
GROUP 708
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Total capital expenditures in 2013 amounted to € 708 million.

Besides health, safety & environment and maintenance capital
expenditures, the Group selectively invested in a number of strategic
projects, with priority given to businesses and geographies with
superior and sustainable growth potential. Several growth investments
were realized in 2013 in our growth engines and highly resilient
businesses. The most significant being:

In Advanced Formulations

m the large-scale alkoxylation facility in Singapore to serve the fast-
growing Asian market in home & personal care, coatings, industrial,
agrochemicals and oil & gas;

u the large-scale alkoxylation unit in the US (Texas), at an integrated
industrial facility of LyondellBasell's Equistar Chemicals affiliate, in
order to serve a growing North American market;

Research & Innovation

Financial information

Management report

= the specialty surfactant plant in Germany to develop and produce
surfactant solutions for Solvay’s home & personal care and
industrial customers serving Central and Eastern Europe;

= the new vanillin production facility in China representing an increase
of 40% of Solvay’s global production to serve the growing demand
in the region;

= an investment to double the specialty fluorinated derivatives
production capacity in France.

In Advanced Materials
= the new plant of Highly Dispersible Silica (HDS) in Poland to
increase capacity by 85,000 tons per year;

= the investment in Specialty Polymers in China (Changshu).

In € million Net Research & Innovation costs in 2013
Advanced Formulations 52
Advanced Materials 90
Performance Chemicals 20
Functional Polymers 22
Corporate & Business Services 53
GROUP 237

Net Research & Innovation costs in 2013 were € 237 million.

Research & Innovation policy and organization are described from page 39 to 43 of this report.

Group employees

The Solvay group employed 29,400 full-time equivalents at December 31, 2013 compared to 29,100 at December 31, 2012. Additional
information concerning Human Resources and the organization of the Group are available from page 20 to 22 of this report.

Analysis of the parent company results (Solvay SA)

2012

In € million

Profit for the year available for distribution 359 933
Carried forward 4,174 3,613
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO THE GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING 4,533 4,446
Appropriation:

Gross dividend 271 271
Carried forward 4,262 4,175
TOTAL 4,533 4,446
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Solvay SA is a société anonyme created under Belgian law, with its
registered office at rue de Ransbeek 310 at 1120 Brussels. Solvay SA
has two branches: Solvay SA France (25, rue de Clichy, 75009 Paris,
France) and Solvay SA ltalie (Via Piave 6, 57013 Rosignano, ltaly).

The accounts of Solvay SA are prepared in accordance with Belgian
generally accepted accounting principles, and include its French and
[talian branches.

The main activities of Solvay SA consist of holding and managing
a number of participations in Group companies and of financing
the Group from the bank and bond markets. It also manages the
research center at Neder-Over-Heembeek (Belgium) and a very limited
number of industrial and commercial activities not undertaken through
subsidiaries.

The operating result represents the balance of the head office operating
costs partially offset by income from industrial and commercial
activities not undertaken through subsidiaries.

Current profit before taxes amounts to € 220 million end of 2013,
compared with € 1,062 million in the previous year. The current
profit includes dividends received from its various shareholdings
(€ 535 million in 2013) and the differential between interest paid and
received on its financing activities.

The balance of extraordinary results for 2013 is € 102 million,
compared with € (149) million in 2012. The main item (€ 147 million)
results from write-backs of impairments on some participations.

The net profit of Solvay SA amounted in 2013 to € 359 million,
compared with € 933 million in 2012.

In the absence of transfers to untaxed reserves, carried forward net
income of € 4,533 million is available for distribution.

Events after the reporting period
and outlook

Events after the reporting period

The recent significant devaluation of the Argentina Pesos (ARS) will
have an additional negative impact on the result of the sale of Solvay
Indupa.

Early 2014, a process to explore the divestment of Eco Services
(Performance Chemicals) has been initiated. Eco Services is active in
the recycling of sulfuric acid in the US oil and gas business.

There were no other material events after the reporting period.

Outlook

So far into the year some of Solvay’s end markets have shown early
signs of improvement and the Group is well-placed to benefit from
better macroeconomic conditions. Although Solvay remains cautious,
it is confident that 2014 will show REBITDA growth supported by the
delivery of excellence programs.

Management of risks

Risk management (processes, risks identified and actions undertaken
to reduce them) is described on pages 148 to 161 of this report.

Financial instruments

The management of financial risks and any use of financial instruments
to hedge them are described on pages 153 and 154 of this report.

Audit Committee

The mission, composition and modus operandi of the Audit Committee
are described on pages 170 to 178 of this report.

Corporate Governance Statement

The Corporate Governance Statement is included on pages 164 to
196 of this report. It includes among others a description of the legal
and shareholding structure of Solvay, its capital and dividend policy,
the modus operandi of the Shareholders’ Mestings, the composition
and modus operandi of the Board of Directors and its Committees,
the composition and modus operandi of the Executive Committee,
the compensation policy and the most recent compensation report,
a description of the main characteristics of risk management and
internal control systems, the measures taken by Solvay to comply
with Belgian rules on insider trading and a description of the Group’s
Code of Conduct.
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1.3 Additional financial information

Historical financial data

IFRS
In € million 2009 2010 2011 2012
Sales 8,485 7,109 8,109 12,831 10,367
Net sales 8,001 12,435 9,938
REBITDA 1,439 1,051 1,208 2,022 1,663
REBITDA as % of sales 17 15 15 16 17
REBIT 969 633 748 1,227 886
Total depreciation and amortization 496 77 455 794 752
EBIT 864 305 560 1,275 647
Net income, Solvay share 515 1,777 247 584 270
Earnings per share (basic) (in €) 6.28 21.85 3.04 7.10 3.25
Research expenditure 555 181 156 261 247
Capital expenditures 567 538 4,797 826 1,809
Free Cash flow 327 787 524
Financial data
Equity * 5,160 6,839 6,653 6,596 7,453
Net debt 1,333 (2,902) 1,760 1,125 1,102
Net debt/shareholder’s equity (in %) 26 NA 26 17 15
Gross dividend per share (in €) 2.93 3.07 3.07 3.20 3.20
Gross distribution to Solvay shareholders 241 240 250 271 271
Personnel data
Persons employed at December 31 28,204 16,785 29,121 29,103 29,389
Personnel costs 2,016 1,339 1,422 2,302 2,143
* Equity 2013 includes hybrid bonds.

Adjusted

In € million 2011 Proforma 2012 2012 restated [ELED
Net sales 12,693 12,435 10,515 9,938
REBITDA 2,068 2,067 1,896 1,663
REBITDA as % of sales 16 17 18 17
REBIT 1,408 1,403 1,303 1,035
Total depreciation and amortization 655 663 593 603
EBIT 1,425 1,451 1,357 796
Net income, Solvay share 710 690 378
Earnings per share (basic) (in €) 8.63 8.37 4.54
Research expenditure 218 261 247 237
Capital expenditures 1,058 826 826 1,809
Free cash flow 656 787 787 524

Earnings per share

On an adjusted basis, the basic earnings per share amounted to
€4.54in 2013 compared to € 8.37 in 2012 explained by the evolution
of the operating results.

On an IFRS basis, the basic earnings per share amounted to € 3.25
in 2013 compared to € 6.84 in 2012.

Dividend

On February 24, 2014, the Board of Directors decided to propose to
the General Shareholders’ Meeting of May 13, 2014 payment of a total
gross dividend of € 3.20 per share (€ 2.40 net per share).

The dividend for the fiscal year 2013, stable compared to the dividend
for the fiscal year 2012, is in line with the Group’s dividend policy of
maintaining a stable to increasing dividend whenever possible and, as
far as possible, never reducing it. Dividend was then never decreased
in the last 30 years and increased in some years.

Given the interim dividend of € 1.3333 gross per share (€ 1.00 net
per share; coupon no. 93) paid on January 23, 2014, the balance of
the dividend in respect of 2013, equal to € 1.8667 gross per share
(€ 1.40 net per share; coupon no. 94), will be paid on May 20, 2014.
Solvay shares will be traded 'ex-dividend’ on NYSE Euronext from
May 15, 2014.
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h

— Gross and net dividend per share
In€
3.20 3.20
2.93 3.07 3.07
2.40 2.40
2.20 2.30 2.30 | I
2009 2010 20m 2012 2013
I Cross dividend per share mm Net dividend per share

IFRS historical consolidated data per share

In€ 2009 2010 2011 Pl 2013 |

Equity* 57.87 78.95 75.79 80.14 89.63
REBITDA 16.74 12.92 14.87 24.57 20.00
Net income 6.28 21.85 3.04 7.10 3.25
Net income (from continuing operations) 2.59 0.62 3.51 7.08 2.47
Diluted net income 6.28 21.80 3.08 7.06 3.22
Diluted net income (from continuing operations) 2.59 0.62 3.49 7.04 2.45
Number of shares (in thousands) at December 31 84,701 84,701 84,701 84,701 84,701
Average number of shares (in thousands) (basic)

for calculating IFRS earnings per share 82,143 81,320 81,224 82,305 83,151
Average number of shares (in thousands) (basic)

for calculating IFRS diluted earnings per share 82,186 81,499 81,546 82,696 83,843
Gross dividend 2.93 3.07 3.07 3.20 3.20
Net dividend 2.20 2.30 2.30 2.40 2.40
Highest price 77.8 81.9 111.6 109.8 118.9
Lowest price 42.0 67.8 61.5 62.1 97.4
Price at December 31 75.6 79.8 63.7 108.6 115.0
Price/earnings at December 31 12.0 3.6 21.0 15.30 35.4
Net dividend yield (in %) 3 3 3 2 2
Gross dividend yield 4 4 4 3 3
Annual volume (thousands of shares) 71,259 47,028 63,462 77,846 54,437
Annual volume (in € million) 4,414 3,481 5,522 6,796 5,960
Market capitalization at December 31 (in € billion) 6.4 6.8 5.4 9.2 9.8
Velocity (in %) 85 56 78 92 63
Velocity adjusted by Free Float (in %) 122 80 111 131 94

* Equity 2013 includes hybrid bonds.

64 Solvay - Annual Report 2013



2 Financial statements

Financial information

Financial statements

2.1 Consolidated Financial Statements

The following financial statements were authorized for issue by the
Board of Directors meeting on February 24, 2014. They have been
drawn up in accordance with the IFRS accounting policies which are
set out in the coming pages.

General comment:

a the Chlorovinyls net assets have been reclassified in 2013 to the
Assets Held for Sale and Liabilities associated with Asset Held for
Sale. In 2012 they were included in each line of the balance sheet;

b the Solvay Indupa had already been reclassified in 2012 to the
Assets Held for Sale and Liabilities associated with Asset Held for
Sale;

Income statement

¢ the PVC Compounds (Benvic) net assets have been reclassified

in 2013 to the Assets Held for Sale and Liabilities associated with
Asset Held for Sale. In 2012 they were included in each line of the
balance sheet;

the net income of Chlorovinyls, Solvay Indupa and post-closing
adjustments related to the divestiture of the Pharmaceutical
business are included in the result from discontinued operation in
2013. The income statement for 2012 has accordingly also been
restated for Chlorovinyls;

the cash flow statement doesn’t segregate continuing and
discontinued operations. A specific statement discloses the
cash flow from operating, investing and financing activities for
discontinued operations (see note 23).

Notes [N 2012

€ million

Sales 1) 10,367 10,910
Revenue from non-core activities 429 395
Net sales 9,938 10,515
Cost of goods sold (8,043) (8,546)
Gross margin 2,324 2,364
Commercial and administrative costs (1,199) (1,076)
Research and development costs (237) (247)
Other operating gains and losses 4) (94) 97)
Earnings from associates and joint ventures accounted for using equity method 5) 92 183
REBIT 886 1,127
Non-recurring items (6) (239) 55
EBIT 647 1,181
Cost of borrowings () (187) (167)
Interest on lendings and short term deposits (7) 25 16
Other gains and losses on net indebtedness (7) 2 8)
Cost of discounting provisions (7) 87) (200)
Income/loss from available-for-sale investments 40 )
Result before taxes 437 820
Income taxes 8) (187) (241)
Result from continuing operations 249 579
Result from discontinued operations (13) 65 1
Net income for the year (12) 315 580
Non-controlling interests (44) (17)
Net income (Solvay share) 9) 270 563
Basic earnings per share from continuing operations (in €) (11) 2.47 6.28
Basic earnings per share from discontinued operations (in €) 0.78 0.56
Basic earnings per share (in €) 3.25 6.84
Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations (in €) (11) 2.45 6.25
Diluted earnings per share from discontinued operations (in €) 0.78 0.56
Diluted earnings per share (in €) 3.23 6.81
RATIOS

Gross margin as a % of sales 22.4% 21.7%
Interest coverage ratio 5.4 7.1
Income taxes/Result before taxes (in %) 42.9% 29.4%

Interest coverage ratio = REBIT/Charges on net indebtedness.
Explanatory notes can be found after the financial statements
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NON IFRS METRICS

REBITDA 3) 1,663 1,896
Adjusted net income (10) 422 707
Statement of comprehensive income
Net income for the year 315 580
Other comprehensive income
Recyclable components
Hyperinflation (14) 30
Gains and losses on available-for-sale financial assets (14) (23) 14
Gains and losses on hedging instruments in a cash flow hedge (14) ©) 11
Currency translation differences (14) (356) (129)
Non recyclable components
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability (14) 109 (419)
Income tax relating to recyclable and non recyclable components
Income tax relating to components of other comprehensive income (14) (38) 44
Other comprehensive income, net of related tax effects (287) (478)
Comprehensive income for the year 28 102
attributed to:
m owners of the parent 25 101
= non-controlling interests 3 1
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Statement of cash flows

The amounts below include the effect of the discontinued operations.
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Net income 315 580
u Depreciation, amortization and impairments (15) 929 794
m Earnings from associates and joint ventures accounted for using the equity

method (93) (184)
m Net financial charges and Income/loss from available-for-sale investments 245 401
m Income taxes expense (16) 232 295
Changes in working capital (17) 54 54
Changes in provisions (18) (245) (310)
Dividends received from associates and joint ventures accounted for using equity
method 83 53
Income taxes paid (16) (262) (179)
Other (19) 20 (47)
Cash flow from operating activities 1,278 1,457
Acquisition (-) of subsidiaries (20) (878) ()]
Acquisition (-) of investments — Other (20) (121) (39
Loans to associates and non consolidated subsidiaries (20) (23) 0
Sale (+) of investments (20) 44 191
Acquisition (-) of tangible and intangible assets (20) (810) (785)
Sale (+) of tangible and intangible assets (20) 33 109
Dividend from available-for-sale investments 4 1
Changes in non-current financial assets 18 4
Cash flow from investing activities (1,732) (520)
Capital increase (+)/ redemption (-) 0 (28)
Proceed from bond issuance classified as equity (21) 1,191 0
Acquisition (-)/ sale (+) of treasury shares (1) 142
Net changes in borrowings (120) (879)
Changes in other current financial assets 205 (294)
Interests paid (198) (176)
Dividends paid (843) (278)
Other 22) 61) 67)
Cash flow from financing activities 672 (1,081)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 218 (144)
Currency translation differences (53) (22)
Opening cash balance 1,778 1,943
Closing cash balance @ (33) 1,943 1,778
FREE CASH FLOW FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS © 290 679
FREE CASH FLOW FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS © 235 108
TOTAL FREE CASH FLOW 524 787

(1) On tangible assets, intangible assets and goodwill.
(2) Including cash in assets held for sale (€ 11 million in 2013 and € 10 million in 2012).

(3 Free cash flow = Cash flow from operating activities (including dividends from associates and joint ventures) + cash flow from investing activities (excluding acquisitions ans disposals of subsidiaries and other

investments).
Explanatory notes can be found after the financial statements.

Cash flows from discontinued operations

Cash flow from operating activities 337 252
Cash flow from investing activities (102) (144)
Cash flow from financing activities (22) (29)
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (23) 213 79
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Statement of financial position (balance sheet)

ASSETS

Non-current assets 11,191 11,602
Intangible assets (25) 1,620 1,462
Goodwill (26) 3,096 2,717
Tangible assets (27) 4,679 5,393
Available-for-sale investments (28) 38 66
Investments in associates and joint ventures (29) 889 869
Other investments (30) 111 123
Deferred tax assets (8b) 502 548
Loans and other non-current assets (34) 257 424
Current assets 7,242 6,728
Inventories (31) 1,267 1,422
Trade receivables (34) 1,322 1,657
Income tax receivables 35 13
Other current receivables — Financial instruments (34) 481 758
Other current receivables — Other 583 685
Cash and cash equivalents (33) 1,932 1,768
Assets held for sale (13) 1,621 425
Total assets 18,433 18,330
EQUITY & LIABILITIES

Total equity 7,453 6,574
Share capital 1,271 1,271
Reserves 5,804 4,859
Non-controlling interests 378 443
Non-current liabilities 6,838 8,226
Long-term provisions: employee benefits 32 2,684 2,987
Other long-term provisions (32 773 1,214
Deferred tax liabilities (8b) 469 489
Long-term financial debt (33) 2,745 3,321
Other non-current liabilities 166 216
Current liabilities 4,142 3,530
Short-term provisions: employee benefits (32) 63
Other short-term provisions 32 339 243
Short-term financial debt (33) 769 331
Trade liabilities (34) 1,353 1,617
Income tax payable 17 69
Dividends payable 112 103
Other current liabilities 602 768
Liabilities associated with assets held for sale (13) 949 337
Total equity & liabilities 18,433 18,330
RATIOS

Net debt to equity ratio 14.8% 17.1%

Net debt to equity ratio = net debt/total equity.
Net debt = short and long-term financial debt less cash and cash equivalents and other current receivables — Financial instruments.
Explanatory notes can be found after the financial statements.
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Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent

Share Issue

€ million capital premiums

Currency

Retained Hybrid Treasury translation
earnings Bonds

shares differences

Revaluation reserve (Fair value)

Defined

benefit

Cash flow pension
hedges plan

Available-
for-sale
investments

Total
reserves

Non-
controlling
interests

Total
equity

Balance at
December 31, 2011
published 1,271 18

5,693

(292) (332)

3 12 (217) 4,885

497

6,653

IAS 19 Revised

Balance at

December 31, 2011 1,271 18

(19)

5,674

(292) (332)

(19)

(217) 4,866

(1)

496

(20)

6,633

Net profit for the
period

ltems of Other
Comprehensive
Income

Comprehensive
income

Cost of stock options
Dividends

Acquisitions/sale of
treasury shares

Increase (decrease)
through changes in
ownership interests
in subsidiaries that

do not result in loss
of control

Other

Balance at

December 31,2012 1,271 18

563

563
11
(255)

Q)
5

5,997

(121)

(121)

143

(1)

(160) (453)

563

(358) (462)

14 3 101
11

(255)

(358)

143

U]
©®
4,860

17 15 (575)

17

(16)

(29)

443

580

(478)

102
11
(280)

143

Net profit for the
period

[tems of Other
Comprehensive
Income of which
hyperinflation®

Comprehensive
income

270

20

291

(315)

(315)

270

(23) ©) 81 (245)

(23) ©) 81 25

44

41)

Hybrid Bonds®
Cost of stock options
Dividends

Acquisitions/sale of
treasury shares

Result on sales of
treasury shares

Increase (decrease)
through changes in
ownership interests
in subsidiaries that

do not result in loss
of control

Balance at
December 31, 2013 1,271 18

10
(276)

©

5,985

1,194

1,194

29

(132) (768)

1,194
10
(276)

()

0

-8

(6) 6  (494) 5,804

(76)

8

378

7,453

(1) Impact on equity following the application of IAS 29, resulting mainly from the restatement of non-monetary assets (as property, plant and equipment) to reflect current purchasing power as at year end ‘using a
general price index from the date when they were first recognized.
(2) Following the acquisition of Chemlogics and to strengthens Solvay's capital structure, a hybrid bond has been issued for a worth of € 1.2 billion. This bond qualifies as Equity Instrument as IAS 32 criteria are

fulfilled.
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2.2 Notes to the consolidated financial statements
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The main accounting policies used in preparing these consolidated
financial statements are set out below:

1 General information and applicable IFRS

Solvay (the “Company”) is a public limited liability company governed
by Belgian law and quoted on NYSE Euronext Brussels, and NYSE
Euronext Paris. The principal activities of the Company, its subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associates (jointly the “Group”) are described in
note 1 on segment information.

The Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2013 were prepared in accordance with
IFRS (International Financial Reporting Standards) as adopted by the
European Union.

A. Standards, interpretations and amendments
applicable as from 2013

= Amendments to IAS 19 Employee Benefits (applicable for annual
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013).

= Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of ltems of Other Comprehensive
Income (applicable for annual periods beginning on or after from
July 1st, 2012).

= Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures —
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (applicable for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013).

= Amendments to IFRS 1 Government Loans (applicable for annual
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013).

= Amendments to IFRS 1 First Time Adoption of International
Financial Reporting Standards — Severe Hyperinflation and Removal
of Fixed Dates for First-time Adopters (applicable for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2013).

= Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes — Deferred Tax: Recovery
of Underlying Assets (applicable for annual periods beginning on
or after January 1, 2013).

= |IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement (applicable for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2013).

= Improvements to IFRS (2009-2011) (applicable for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2013).

= IFRIC 20 Stripping costs in the production phase of a surface mine
(applicable for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2013).

The impacts on the Group Financial Statements of the Amendments to
IAS 19 are presented in the paragraph for the changes in accounting
policies. The other aforementioned amendments and interpretations
have limited impact on the disclosures.

B. Standards, interpretations and amendments
to standards already published,
but not yet applicable in 2013

= IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and subsequent amendments
(effective date not communicated yet).

= IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements (applicable for annual
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014).

= IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements (applicable for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2014).

= IFRS 12 Disclosures of Interests in Other Entities (applicable for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014).

= Amendments to IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation —
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (applicable for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014).

= Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27 — Consolidated
Financial Statements and Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities:
Investment Entities (applicable for annual periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2014).

= Amendments to IAS 39 — Novation of Derivatives and Continuation
of Hedge Accounting (applicable for annual periods on or after
January 1, 2014, but not yet endorsed in EU).

= Amendments to IAS 36 — Recoverable amount Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets (applicable for annual periods on or after
January 1, 2014, but not yet endorsed in EU).

= Amendments to IAS 19 Employee Benefits — Employee
Contributions (applicable for annual periods beginning on or after
July 1, 2014, but not yet endorsed in EU).

= IFRIC 21 - Levies (applicable for annual periods on or after
January 1, 2014, but not yet endorsed in EU).

= Improvements to IFRS (2010-2012 cycle) (applicable for annual
periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014, but not yet endorsed
in EV).

= Improvements to IFRS (2011-2013 cycle) (applicable for annual
periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014, but not yet endorsed
in EV).

The impacts due to the application of IFRS 11 - Joint
Arrangements are presented below.

IFRS 11 supersedes IAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures and prescribes
that a joint arrangement (i.e. an arrangement under which Solvay has
joint control together with one or several other parties) can either be
classified as a joint venture or as a joint operation. In the latter case,
Solvay has direct rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities,
relating to the joint arrangement. Accordingly, Solvay’s interests in joint
operations are treated under a method similar to the proportionate
consolidation. With respect to joint arrangements classified as joint
ventures, the related interests are accounted for under the equity
method, which is consistent with the current Group accounting policy
under IAS 31.
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Therefore, the initial application of IFRS 11 in 2014 will affect the
accounting treatment of the following joint arrangements classified
as joint operations:

= BASF Interox H,0, Production NV;
m Deven AD;

= MTP HPJV C.V;

u MTP HPJV Management B.V,;

= MTP HPJV (Thailand) Ltd;

=  Saudi Hydrogen Peroxyde Co.;

= Solvay Sisecam Holding AG;

= Solvay Sodi AD.

The other aforementioned standards, interpretations and amendments
will have to the best knowledge of the management no significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

C. Changes in accounting principles

In 2011, the IASB published a revised IAS-19 Employee Benefits,
applicable for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013.
Solvay applied the IAS-19 revised for the first time in the condensed
consolidated financial statements as of March 31, 2013.

The impact of the IAS 19 revision on the measurement of the related
provisions is limited to the inclusion of the taxes on contributions.

The comparative financial statements have been restated to include the
effects of IAS-19 revised as of December 31, 2011. This restatement
has impacted the retained earnings (€ (20) million) and the employee
benefit provisions (€ 20 million).

On the consolidated income statement ended December 31, 2012,
net result was negatively impacted for € 21 million. This is mainly due
to the replacement of the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation
and the expected return on plan assets with a net interest cost based
on the net defined benefit liability and the discount rate.

2  Basis for preparation

The consolidated financial statements are presented in million of
euros, which is also the functional currency of the parent company.
The Group’s consolidated financial statements were prepared on
a historical cost basis, except for investments held for trading and
available for sale, which are stated at their fair value. Financial assets
which do not have a quoted price in an active market and the fair
value of which cannot be reliably measured are carried at cost. Unless
explicitly stated, the accounting policies are applied consistently with
the previous year.

The preparation of the financial statements requires the use of
estimates and the formulation of judgments and assumptions that have
an impact on the application of accounting policies and the amounts
shown in the financial statements. The areas for which the estimates
and assumptions are material with regard to the consolidated financial
statements are presented in the note related to “Critical accounting
judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty”.

3 Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
(its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity
so as to obtain benefits from its activities. Solvay is presumed to
exercise control when it acquires, directly or indirectly, more than
50% of voting rights. To assess this control, potential voting rights
that are immediately exercisable or convertible held by Solvay and its
subsidiaries are taken into consideration.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated income statement from the effective date
of acquisition and up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those
used by the Group.

Allintra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are fully
eliminated.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are identified separately
from the Group’s equity. The interest of non-controlling shareholders
is initially measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on
an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Subsequent to acquisition, the
carrying amount of non-controlling interests is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus the non-controlling interests’ share
of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is
attributed to non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group’s interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a
loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying
amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognized directly in equity.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on
disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the
fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (i) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling
interests. Amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive
income in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for (i.e. reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred directly to retained earnings) in the same
manner as would be required if the relevant assets or liabilities were
disposed of. The fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under IAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement or, when applicable, the
cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or jointly
controlled entity.
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4 Business combinations

Acquisitions of subsidiaries are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration for each acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the fair values (at the date of acquisition) of assets
transferred liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

Where applicable, the consideration for the acquisition includes any
asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement,
measured at its acquisition-date fair value. Subsequent changes in
such fair values are adjusted against the cost of acquisition where
they qualify as measurement period adjustments (see below). All other
subsequent changes in the fair value of contingent consideration
classified as an asset or liability are accounted for in accordance with
relevant IFRSs. Changes in the fair value of contingent consideration
classified as equity are not recognized.

Where a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s
previously held interests in the acquired entity are remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date the Group attains control)
and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognized in profit or loss.
Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition
date that have previously been recognized in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss, where such treatment would
be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
that meet the conditions for recognition under IFRS 3 (2008) are
recognized at their fair value at the acquisition date, except that:

m deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets related to
employee benefit arrangements are recognized and measured
in accordance with IAS 12 Income Taxes and IAS 19 Employee
Benefits respectively;

m liabilities or equity instruments related to the replacement by the
Group of an acquiree’s share-based payment awards are measured
in accordance with IFRS 2 Share-based Payment; and

m assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in
accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that
Standard.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the
end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs, the Group
reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting
is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted during the
measurement period (see next paragraph below), or additional assets
or liabilities are recognized, to reflect new information obtained about
facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date that, if
known, would have affected the amounts recognized as of that date.

The measurement period is the period from the date of acquisition
to the date the Group obtains complete information about facts and
circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date — and is subject
to a maximum of one year.
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5 Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence
and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in these financial statements using the equity method of accounting,
except when the investment is classified as held for sale, in which
case it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations. Under the equity
method, investments in associates are carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition
changes in the Group’s share of the net assets of the associate, less
any impairment in the value of individual investments. Losses of an
associate in excess of the Group’s interest in that associate (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate) are recognized only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of the associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
of the associate recognized at the date of acquisition is recognized as
goodwill. The goodwill is included within the carrying amount of the
investment and is assessed for impairment as part of that investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition,
after reassessment, is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group, profits
and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
relevant associate.

6 Interestsin joint ventures

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby the Group and
other parties undertake an economic activity that is subject to joint
control.

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment of a
separate entity in which each venturer has an interest are referred to
as jointly controlled entities. The Group reports its interests in jointly
controlled entities using the equity method of accounting (see 5
Investments in associates).

We refer to note 26 for goodwill arising on the acquisition of the
Group’s interest in a jointly controlled entity.

Where the Group transacts with its jointly controlled entities, unrealized
profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest
in the joint venture.
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7  Goodwill

Goodwill arising in a business combination is recognized as an asset
at the date that control is acquired (the acquisition date). Goodwill is
measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred
over the share acquired by the Group in the fair value of the entity’s
net identifiable assets at the acquisition date. The consideration
transferred corresponds to the sum of the fair values of the assets
transferred and liability incurred by the acquirer to former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the acquirer.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquire on
an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

If, after reassessment, the Group’s interest in the fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the difference is recognized directly in income statement.

Goodwill is not amortized but is reviewed for impairment. Impairment
is tested annually and more frequently if there are indications of a
loss in value.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of
the Group’s cash-generating units (or group of CGUs) in accordance
with IAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets that
generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other group of assets.

These tests consist in comparing the carrying amount of the assets
(or CGUs) with their recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of
an asset (CGU) is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its
value in use. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is
less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and
then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. An impairment loss recognized for
goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

On disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable amount of goodwill is
included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

8 Foreign currencies

The individual financial statements of each Group entity are prepared in
the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (its functional currency). For the purpose of the consolidated
financial statements, the results and financial position of each Group
entity are expressed in euros (EUR), which is the functional currency
of the Company and the presentation currency for the consolidated
financial statements.

In preparing the financial statements of the individual entities,
transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency

are recognized at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the closing rate.

Non monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the closing rate when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences are recognized in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise except for:

= exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to
assets under construction for future productive use, which are
included in the cost of those assets when they are regarded as an
adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings;

= exchange differences on transactions entered into in order to hedge
certain foreign currency risks (see 23 below for hedging accounting
policies); and

= exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or payable
to a foreign operation for which settlement is neither planned
nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of the net investment
in the foreign operation), which are recognized initially in other
comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to profit or
loss on disposal or partial disposal of the net investment.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements, the
assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are expressed
in euros using closing rates. Income and expense items are translated
at the average exchange rates for the period. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognized in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate) under “currency translation differences”.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group’s
entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, loss of joint
control over a jointly controlled entity that includes a foreign operation,
or loss of significant influence over an associate that includes a foreign
operation), all of the accumulated exchange differences in respect of
that operation attributable to the Group are reclassified to profit or
loss. Any exchange differences that have previously been attributed to
non-controlling interests are derecognized, but they are not reclassified
to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal (i.e. no loss of control) of a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences is reattributed to non-controlling
interests and is not recognized in profit or loss. For all other partial
disposals (i.e. of associates or jointly controlled entities not involving
a change of accounting basis), the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a
foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.
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The main exchange rates used are:

1 Euro =

Pound sterling GBP
US Dollar uUSD
Argentinian Peso ARS
Brazilian Real BRL
Thai Baht THB
Yuan Renminbi CNY
Japanese Yen JPY
Venezuelian Bolivar Fuerte VEF
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Year-end rate Average rate

2012 2012

0.8337 0.8161 0.8493 0.8109
1.3791 1.3194 1.3280 1.2848
8.9834 6.4823 7.2770 5.8481
3.2576 2.7036 2.8674 2.5084
45.1780 40.3470 40.8222 39.9277
8.3491 8.2207 8.1645 8.1053
144.7200 113.6100 129.6464 102.4916
8.6789 5.6726 8.0595 5.5303

9 Provisions for retirement obligations
and other long-term employee benefits

The Group’s employees are offered various post-employment and
other long terms employee benefits as a result of legislation applicable
in certain countries, contractual agreements entered into by the Group
with its employees or constructive obligations.

The post-employment benefits are classified under defined benefit or
defined contributions plans.

A. Defined contribution plans

Defined contribution plans involve the payment of fixed contributions
to a separate entity, thus releasing the employer from any subsequent
obligation, as the entity is solely responsible for paying the amounts
due to the employee. Once the contributions have been paid, no
liability is shown in the Solvay financial statements. The contributions
are recognized in employee benefit expense when they are due.

B. Defined benefit plans

Defined benefit plans concern all plans other than defined contributions
plans.

These plans mainly concern:

m retirement benefits: pension plans, termination benefits, other
retirement obligations and supplemental benefits;

u other long-term employee benefits: long-service benefits granted
to employees according to their seniority in the Group;

m other post-employment benefits: medical care.

Taking into account projected final salaries on an individual basis, post-
employment benefits are measured by applying a method (projected
unit credit method) using assumptions involving the discount rate, life
expectancy, turnover, wages, annuity revaluation, medical cost inflation
and discounting of sums payable. The assumptions specific to each
plan take into account the local economic and demographic contexts.

The discount rates are interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds
that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be
paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of
the related pension obligation.

The amount recorded under post-employment obligations
corresponds to the difference between the present value of future
obligations and the fair value of the plan assets intended to hedge
them. If this calculation gives rise to a deficit, an obligation is recoded
in liabilities. Otherwise, a net asset limited to the lower of the surplus
in the defined benefit plan and the present value of any future plan
refunds or any reduction in future contributions to the plan is recorded.

The defined benefit cost consists of service cost and net interest
on the net liability or asset, both recognized in profit or loss, and
remeasurements of the net liability or asset, recognized in other
comprehensive income.

Service cost consists of current service cost, past service cost resulting
from plan amendments or curtailments and settlement gains or losses.

The interest expenses arising from the reverse discounting of the
benefit obligations, the financial income on plan assets (determined
by multiplying the fair value of the plan assets by the discount rate)
as well as interest on the effect of the asset ceiling are recognized on
a net basis in profit or loss from financial items.

Remeasurements of the net liability or asset consist of:

= actuarial gains and losses on the benefits obligations arising from
experience adjustments and/or changes in actuarial assumptions;

= the return on plan assets (excluding amounts in net interest) and
changes in the limitation of the net asset recognized (excluding
amounts in the net interest).

Other long-term benefits such as long service awards are accounted
for in the same way as post-employment benefits but remeasurements
are fully recognized in profit or loss from financial items for the period
in which they occur.

The actuarial calculations of post-employment obligations and other
long-term benefits are performed by independent actuaries.
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10 Non-recurring items

Non-recurring items mainly include:

m gains and losses on the sale of subsidiaries, joint-ventures,
associates accounted for under the equity method that do not
qualify as discontinued operations;

m acquisition costs of new business;

= gains and losses on the sale of real estate not directly linked to an
operating activity;

= major restructuring charges;

= impairment losses resulting from the shutdown of an activity or
a plant;

= impairment losses resulting from testing Cash-Generating Units for
impairment (a CGU includes tangible assets, intangible assets and
allocated goodwill if any);

m the impact of significant litigation;

= the remediation costs not generated by on-going production
facilities (shut-down sites, discontinued activities...);

m other material operating income or expenses resulting from unusual
events and likely to distort the analysis and comparability of the
Group’s performance.

11 Income taxes

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
income statement because of items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit.

Deferred taxes are calculated by tax entity. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilized.

The following items do not give rise to the recognition of deferred tax:
= the initial recognition of goodwill;

= the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which
is not a business combination and affects neither accounting profit
nor taxable profit; and

= temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
and interests in joint ventures insofar as they will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, and
interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognized to the extent
that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilize the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets
and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax for the period

Current and deferred tax are recognized as an expense or income in
profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized
outside profit or loss (whether in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity), in which case the tax is also recognized outside profit
or loss, or where they arise from the initial accounting for a business
combination. In the case of a business combination, the tax effect is
taken into account in the accounting for the business combination.
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12 Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Agreements not in the legal form of a lease contract are analyzed with
reference to IFRIC 4 to determine whether or not they contain a leasing
contract to be accounted for in accordance with IAS 17.

Finance leases

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognized as assets of
the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at
the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding
liability to the lessor is included in the statement of financial position
(balance sheet) as a finance lease obligation.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected
useful lives on the same basis as owned assets or, where shorter, the
term of the relevant lease.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and
reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses
are recognized immediately in profit or loss, unless they are directly
attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalized
in accordance with the Group’s general policy on borrowing costs
(see 17 below). Contingent rentals are recognized as expenses in the
periods in which they are incurred.

Operating leases

Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term, except where another systematic basis
is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits
from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under
operating leases are recognized as an expense in the period in which
they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating
leases, such incentives are recognized as a liability. The aggregate
benefit of incentives is recognized as a reduction of rental expense on
a straight-line basis, except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from
the leased asset are consumed.

13 Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are initially
measured at fair value; intangible assets acquired separately or
internally developed are initially measured at cost.

After initial recognition, intangible assets are measured at cost or fair
value less accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment
losses.
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Subsequent expenditure on intangible assets is capitalized only if it
increases the future economic benefits associated with the specific
asset. Other expenditure is expensed as incurred.

Intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over the best
estimate of their useful lives. The amortization period and method
are reviewed at each financial year-end. A change in the useful life
of an intangible asset is accounted for prospectively as a change in
estimate.

Patents and trademarks 2-20 years
Software 3-5 years
Development expenditures 2-5 years
Other intangible assets 5-20 years

Licenses, patents and similar rights

Expenditure on acquired licenses, patents, trademarks and similar
rights is capitalized and amortized on a straight-line basis over the
contractual period, if any, or the estimated useful life, which is normally
considered to be not longer than 20 years.

Research and Development costs
Research costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Development costs are capitalized if, and only if all the following
conditions are fulfilled:

= the cost of the asset can be reliably measured;
= the technical feasibility of the product has been demonstrated;

= the product or process will be placed on the market or used
internally;

= the assets will generate future economic benefits (a potential
market exists for the product or, where it is to be used internally,
its future utility is demonstrated);

= the technical, financial and other resources required to complete
the project are available.

The capitalized development costs are amortized on a straight-line
basis over their useful lives.

Capitalized expenditure comprises employee expenses, the cost
of materials and services directly attributed to the projects, and an
appropriate share of overheads including, and where necessary, the
interim interest accrued. It is amortized once the relevant products are
sold or the relevant industrial processes are used over the estimated
term of the economic benefits expected to flow from the project. The
expenditure is tested for impairment if there is indication of a loss in
value and annually for projects in the course of development (see
note 16).

Development expenditure which does not satisfy the above conditions
is expensed as incurred.
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Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets mainly include customer lists and other
intangible commercial assets, such as brand names, acquired
separately or in a business combination. These are amortized on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful life.

14 Greenhouse gas emission allowances
and Certified Emission Reductions

With respect to the mechanism set up by the European Union to
encourage manufacturers to reduce their greenhouse gas emissions,
the Group was granted carbon dioxide (CO,) emission allowances
for some of its installations. The Group is also involved in Clean
Development Mechanism (CDM) under the Kyoto protocol. Under
these projects, the Group has deployed facilities in order to reduce
greenhouse gas emissions at the relevant sites in return for Certified
Emission Reductions (CER).

Treatment of European Union Allowances (EUA)

These allowances are granted each year under the national allocation
plans with a third trading period of eight years starting in January
2013. During the third period, the allowances are generally delivered
free of charge and are valid over the entire trading period if not
used. Allowances may be freely traded upon allocation and may be
purchased or sold, especially if too few or too many allowances are
allocated with respect to actual emissions.

In the absence of any IASB standard or interpretation regulating the
accounting treatment of CO, emission rights, the Group applies the
Trade / Production model, according to which:

= emission allowances and purchases will be registered as inventories;

m depending on the company’s economic models, inventories will
be consumed in the production process or hold for sales and
accounted for differently.

Treatment of Certified Emission Reductions (CER)

Under the CDM projects, Solvay has deployed facilities in order to
reduce the greenhouse gas emissions at its Onsan (South Korea)
and Paulinia (Brazil) sites. Upon verification by independent experts,
should these emissions fall below the benchmark levels set by the
UNFCCC, Solvay receives Certified Emission Rights (CER) which are
freely transferable. Energy Services is in charge of the sales of CERs.

Allocated CERs are recognized in inventories at the lower of cost and
net realizable value. The cost of allocated CERs mainly corresponds
to the amortization of gas emission reduction units.

The CER sales realized between participants in CDM projects and in
organized markets are recognized in net sales upon delivery of the
CERs, i.e. when they are recorded in the UNFCCC register.

In order to manage exposure to future CER price fluctuations, Solvay
has set up forward CER sales contracts, with or without guarantee
of delivery. Based on their characteristics, when these contracts
represent derivatives within the meaning of “IAS 39 Financial
Instruments: recognition and measurement”, they are recognized and
measured according to the rules described in 23 Hedge accounting.
Otherwise, they represent off-balance sheet commitments.

Treatment of Energy Services’ activities

In addition to selling CERs, Energy Services is involved in developing
CO, instrument trading, arbitrage and hedging activities, and
developing the “Origination” activity. The net income or expense from
these activities is recorded, after elimination of intra-group transactions,
in net sales or cost of sales for the “industrial” component, where
Energy Services sells the CERs generated by Solvay, as well as for the
“trading” component, where Energy Services purchases/sells CERs
and EUAs.

The margin calls relating to the derivative instruments contracted by
Energy Services are recognized in “Other current financial assets” in
respect of guarantee deposits paid, and in “Borrowings” in respect
of guarantee deposits received.

15 Property, plant & equipment

A. Initial recognition

The property, plant and equipment owned by the Group are recognized
as assets at acquisition cost when the following criteria are satisfied:

= itis probable that the future economic benefits associated with the
asset will flow to the Group;

= the cost of the asset can be reliably measured.

ltems of property, plant and equipment are carried on the balance
sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment. The cost
of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase or
production price and any costs directly attributable to the location and
condition necessary for its operation, including, where necessary, the
borrowing costs accrued during the construction period.

The components of an item of property, plant and equipment with
different useful lives are recognized separately.

ltems of property, plant and equipment are derecognized from the
balance sheet on disposal or discontinuation. The gain or loss arising
from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is
recognized in profit or loss for the period of derecognition.
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B. Useful lives
Land is not depreciated.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method

are reviewed at each year-end, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis, according to the
useful life listed below:

Buildings 30-40 years
IT equipment 3-5 years
Machinery and equipment 10-20 years
Transportation equipment 5-20 years

Depreciation is included in the income statement under cost of goods
sold, commercial and administrative costs, and in R&D costs.

C. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure incurred for the replacement of a component
of an item of property, plant and equipment is only recognized as an
asset when it satisfies the general criteria mentioned above.

The carrying amount of replaced items is derecognized.

Repair and maintenance costs are recognized in the income statement
as incurred.

Regarding its industrial activity, Solvay incurs expenditure for major
repairs over several years for most of its sites. The purpose of
this expenditure is to maintain the proper working order of certain
installations without altering their useful life. This expenditure is
considered as a specific component of the item of property, plant
and equipment and is amortized over the period during which the
economic benefits flow, i.e. the period between the major repairs.

D. Dismantling costs

Dismantling and restoration costs are included in the initial cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment if the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation to dismantle or restore.

Generally, Solvay does not have any current, legal, or constructive
obligation to dismantle and/or restore its operating sites in accordance
with IAS 37 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets.
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As such, an obligation is only likely to arise upon the discontinuation
of a site’s activities. However, the costs of dismantling discontinued
sites or installations are provided when there is a legal obligation (due
to a request or injunction from the relevant authorities), or there is no
technical alternative to dismantling to ensure the safety compliance
of the discontinued sites or installations.

16 Impairment of tangible and intangible
assets excluding goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if
any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset (or
cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognized immediately in profit or loss.
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17 Capitalized borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

18 Government grants

Government grants are not recognized until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and
equipment are deducted from the cost of those assets. They are
recognized in the balance sheet at their expected value at the time
of initial government approval and corrected, if necessary, after final
approval. The grant is amortized over the depreciation period of the
underlying assets.

Other government grants are recognized as income over the periods
necessary to match them with the costs for which they are intended
to compensate, on a systematic basis. Government grants that are
receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group
with no future related costs are recognized in profit or loss in the period
in which they become receivable.

19 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of purchasing cost (raw materials
and merchandise) or production cost (work in progress and finished
goods) and net realizable value. Net realizable value represents the
estimated selling price, less all estimated costs of making the product
ready for sale, including marketing, selling and distribution costs. The
cost of inventories is determined by using the weighted average cost
or first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. Inventories having a similar nature
and use are measured using the same cost formula.

Cost of inventories includes the purchase, conversion and other costs
incurred to bring the inventories to their present location and condition.

20 Financial assets

All financial assets are recognized and derecognized on trade date
where the purchase or sale of a financial asset is under a contract
whose terms require delivery of the financial asset within the timeframe
established by the market concerned, and are initially measured at
fair value, plus transaction costs, except for those financial assets
classified as at fair value through profit or loss, which are initially
measured at fair value.

A financial asset is classified as current when the cash flows expected
to flow from the instrument mature within one year.

At initial recognition, Solvay classifies financial assets into one of the
four categories provided in IAS 39 Financial Instruments: recognition
and measurement according to the purpose of the acquisition. This
classification determines the method for measuring financial assets at
subsequent balance sheet dates: amortized cost or fair value.

Amortized cost is the amount at which the financial asset is measured
at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the
cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of any
difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount.

For instruments quoted in an active market, the fair value corresponds
to a market price (level 1). For instruments that are not quoted in an
active market, the fair value is determined using valuation techniques
including reference to recent arm’s length market transactions or
transactions involving instruments which are substantially the same
(level 2), or discounted cash flow analysis including, to a maximum
extent, assumptions consistent with observable market data (level 3).
However, if the fair value of an equity instrument cannot be reasonably
estimated, it is measured at cost.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized
cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments (including all
fees on points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognized on an effective interest basis for debt instruments
other than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL.

However, the straight-line method is used instead, whenever it is a
good approximation to the amortized cost rule i.e. when the difference
between both methods is considered as not being significant at Group
level.
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Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are classified as at fair value through profit or loss if
they are held for trading. Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair
value, with any resulting gains or losses recognized in profit or loss.
A financial asset is classified in this category if acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives are also classified
as at FVTPL unless they are designated and effective as hedges.

Held-to-maturity investments

Debentures with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity
dates that the Group has the positive intent and ability to hold to
maturity are classified as held-to-maturity investments. Held-to-
maturity investments are measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method less any impairment, with revenue recognized
on an effective yield basis.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale assets include investments in entities which were
not acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term,
and which are neither consolidated nor accounted for using the
equity method. Assets classified in this category are stated at fair
value, with any resulting gains or losses recognized directly in other
comprehensive income, except if there exists an impairment loss, in
which case the loss accumulated in equity is recycled to the income
statement. However, they are stated at cost if they do not have a
quoted price in an active market and their fair value cannot be reliably
measured by alternative valuation methods.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments which are not quoted in an active market.
The Group’s loans and receivables category comprises cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables and other non-current assets except
pension fund surpluses. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash, have original maturities of three months or less and are subject
to insignificant risk of change in value. Loans and receivables are
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less
any impairment. Interest income is recognized by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables or when the difference
with the straight-line method would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

The impairment loss of a financial asset measured at amortized cost is
equal to the difference between the carrying amount and the estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the initial effective interest rate. The
impairment of an available-for-sale financial asset is calculated with
reference to its current fair value.
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An impairment test is performed, on an individual basis, for each
material financial asset. Other assets are tested as groups of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics.

Impairment losses are recognized in the income statement. With
respect to available-for-sale assets, in the event of an impairment loss,
the cumulative negative changes in fair value previously recognized in
equity are transferred to the income statement.

The impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be